
  1 

 

Agenda 

 
Contact Officer: Darius Zarazel, Democratic Services Officer 
 
Tel: 07917 088376 
 

 

E-mail: darius.zarazel@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
Date: 27 February 2023 
 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 
 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Planning Committee 

 

WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 8 MARCH 2023 AT 7.00 PM 
 

MEETING ROOM 1, ABBEY HOUSE, ABBEY CLOSE, ABINGDON, OX14 3JE 
 

 
You can watch this meeting the council's YouTube channel.   
 

 
 

Members of the Committee: 

Max Thompson (Chair) 

Val Shaw (Vice-Chair) 
Ron Batstone 
Cheryl Briggs 
 

Jenny Hannaby 
Diana Lugova 
Robert Maddison 
 

Mike Pighills 
Janet Shelley 
 

 
Substitutes Councillors 

Jerry Avery 
Paul Barrow, Dr 
Nathan Boyd 
Andy Cooke 

Amos Duveen 
Hayleigh Gascoigne 
Alison Jenner 
Ben Mabbett 

Sarah Medley 
Elaine Ware 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting. 

 
 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

1.  Chair's announcements   
 

To receive any announcements from the chair, and general housekeeping matters. 

 
2.  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
3.  Minutes  (Pages 4 - 49) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on 28 September, 26 October 2022, 9 November, 25 January 2023, 
and 14 February 2023.   

 
4.  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, other registrable interests 
and non-registrable interests or any conflicts of interest in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

 
5.  Urgent business   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.   
 
6.  Public participation   

 
To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.   

 
 

Planning applications 
 

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number. These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE) during normal 
office hours. 
 
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  3 

 

 
Summary index of applications 

 

 Site Address Proposal Application No Page. 

 
     
7.  P22/V2546/S73 - 

Land South of 
Halls Close, 
Drayton   

Variation of conditions 2 (Approved 
Plans) on planning application 
P17/V1225/RM and removal of 
condition 14 (Age Restriction) on 
planning application P15/V2077/O (as 
amended by plans and additional 
documentation received 16 December 
2022, 10 January 2023, 19 January 
2023, 27 January 2023 and 31 
January 2023), (description corrected 
and clarified in agreement with agent 
on 16 February 2023), (erection of 22 
dwellings together with replacement 
garage for 10 Halls Close). 

P22/V2546/S73 50 - 64 

 

     
8.  P22/V2978/S73 - 

Dragon Hill, 
Uffington, 
Faringdon, SN7 
7RE   

Variation of condition 2 (approved 
Plans) of application P22/V1141/FUL 
and removal of condition 7, proposed 
erection of 2no 4 bed detached (self-
build) dwellings. 

P22/V2978/S73 65 - 76 

 

     
9.  P21/V1202/HH - 

The Stables, 
Oxford Road, 
Farmoor, 
Oxford, OX2 
9NN   

Retrospective application for garden 
building ancillary to the dwelling. To 
form recreation games room/gym, 
workshop, WC and store room (as 
amplified by additional information 
received 11 July 2022 and amended 
by plan and information received 23 
January 2023). 

P21/V1202/HH 77 - 86 

 

 
 



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 28 September 2022 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Planning Committee 

 
held on Wednesday, 28 September 2022 at 7.00 
pm in 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Max Thompson (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Ron Batstone, 
Jenny Hannaby, Diana Lugova, Robert Maddison, Mike Pighills and Janet Shelley 
Officers: Steve Culliford, Emily Hamerton and Ben Silverthorne 
Guests: Councillor Paul Barrow and Councillor Catherine Webber 
 

Remote attendance: 
Officers:  Nathaniel Bamsey, Sarah Green and Stuart Walker 

 
 
49 Chair's announcements  
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and outlined the meeting procedure to be 
followed. He also explained emergency evacuation procedure. 

 

50 Apologies for absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Cheryl Briggs 
 

51 Minutes  
 

Resolved: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 17 August 2022 
and agree the chair signs them as such. 

 

52 Declarations of interest  
 

Councillor Ron Batstone sited a declaration of interest, due to agenda item 8 on the land 
at Monks Farm Grove being part of his ward so he would not take part in the decision 
making. 

 

53 Urgent business  
 

None. 
 

54 Public participation  
 

The Committee noted the list of the members of the public who had registered to speak 
at the meeting. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 28 September 2022 

 

55 P21/V2415/FUL - Smiths Hill Farm, Letcombe Bassett, OX12 9XL  
 

The committee considered planning application P21/V2415/FUL the erection of 
two stable blocks and ancillary hard landscaping to yard area. Use of the site 
for equestrian business purposes. (Additional statement, topographical survey 
and amended block plan with landscaping received 25 May 2022). (Additional 
Information received 7 July 2022- Applicant’s advice latter and plan illustrating 
ground level.) (Additional Information for clarification received 26 August 2022- 
Clarification latter from agent on highway impact & update to description), on 
the land at Smiths Hill Farm, Letcombe Bassett. 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning 
history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda 
pack for the meeting. 
 
The planning officer introduced the report and recommended approval of the 
application.  The officer had concluded that the proposal would have economic 
and social benefits, both locally and wider afield.  The environmental impact of 
the proposal has been carefully assessed; the landscape and purposes of the 
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty would be protected and there was scope 
to enhance it with additional landscaping.  Also, the impact on the local 
highway network would not be significant given the type and scale of the 
proposal and was considered unlikely to cause harm to highway safety.   
 
Charles Rowe and Councillor Yvonne Constance spoke objecting to the 
application. 
 
David Burson, the agent, and Mrs Bradstock spoke in support to the 
application. 
 
Councillor Paul Barrow, a local ward councillor, spoke in support to the 
application  
 
A motion was moved and seconded to accept the application.  The proposer 
believed the application would in maintain the historic tradition of maintaining 
horses in the local area. Members proposed an additional condition to limit the 
timing of the external lighting.  The motion to approve the application was 
carried on being put to the vote.   
 
RESOLVED: to approve planning application P21/V2415/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. Commencement of development – 3 years 
2. Approved plans 
 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 28 September 2022 

Prior to construction of stables above slab level 
3. Surface and foul water drainage details for approval 
4. Updated landscaping scheme, to include hedgerow and hedgerow 
tree planting either side of the site entrance; planting around the 
southwestern corner of the site where the old access was; and 
details of planting to the northern embankments 
 
Compliance 
5. No external lighting installed other than in accordance with details 
first approved 
6. No rooflights in stables 
7. Access and visibility splays in accordance with plans 
8. Turning space in accordance with plans 
9. Materials in accordance with application 
10.Restriction on use of site 
11.External lighting timing, the hours of use of any external lighting shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to its 
use. Thereafter the external lighting shall only be operated in accordance with 
the approved details.  
 
Reason: To conserve and protect the dark skies landscape of the North 
Wessex Downs AONB. (Policy CP44 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part1 
and Policy DP21 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part2) 
 

56 P21/V3516/RM - Monks Farm, Grove, OX12 0AH  
 

The committee considered planning application P21/V3516/RM reserved 
matters approval for 83 dwellings (Phase 1B), including appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale, and approval of details in relation to Phase 1B 
for conditions 1, 16, 19, 20 pursuant to planning permission P16/V0981/O.(As 
amended by plans and documentation received 19 April 2022, and as 
amended and amplified by new information received 1 and 13 June, 13 July, 
and 18 August 2022.), on the land at Monks Farm Grove. 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning 
history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda 
pack for the meeting. 
 
The planning officer introduced the report and recommended approval of the 
application. 
 
Barry Gooch spoke objecting to the application.   
 
Rebecca Bacon and Georgina Naish, the agents, spoke in support to the 
motion. 
 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 28 September 2022 

Councillor Ron Batstone, a local ward councillor, spoke in support of Mr 
Gooch’s suggestion for a mini roundabout at the junction of Denchworth Road 
and Churchward Close, or to defer consideration of the application until the 
northern link road was approved. 
 
The committee noted that the highway layout and access to the site had been 
approved at the outline application stage.  A mini roundabout outside of the 
application site could not be added.   
 
A motion was moved and seconded to accept the officer’s recommendation to 
approve the application.  Although the committee expressed some concern at 
the piecemeal development of the site, members had to consider the 
application as it was before them.  The motion to accept the application was 
carried on being put to the vote.   
 
RESOLVED: to approve planning application P21/V3516/RM subject to the 
following conditions: 
1. Approved plans 
2. Roads, parking and turning and footways to be provided prior to 
first occupation of each dwelling to which it relates. 
3. Boundaries to be provided in accordance with approved drawings 
prior to first occupation of each dwelling to which it relates. 
4. Restriction on occupancy to no more than 55 dwellings until bridge 
is complete. 
5. Restriction on occupancy to no more than 75 dwellings until the 
landscaping approved within this application is complete 
 
Informatives: 
1. Details pursuant to conditions 1, 16, 19 and 20 of outline planning 
permission P16/V0981/O are agreed for this phase through the 
approval of the Reserved Matters application. 
2. The applicant is reminded of the obligation of compliance with the 
relevant conditions on the outline application that apply to this 
phase (e.g., CEMP and LEMP implementation). 
3. Highway informatives 
 

57 P22/V1380/FUL - 3 Stowford Cottage, Faringdon Road, Shippon, 
OX13 6LN  
 

The committee considered planning application P22/V1380/FUL change of 
use from a small 6-person HMO (Use Class C4) to an 8-person HMO 
(SuiGeneris) (amended description agreed on the 5th of August), on the 
lands at Stowford Cottage, Faringdon Road, Shippon. 

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning 
history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda 
pack for the meeting. 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 28 September 2022 

 
The planning officer introduced the report.  The site was already used as a six-
bed home in multiple occupation under permitted development rights.  On 
assessment of the application and on the advice of the county highways officer 
that the parking provision would be sufficient, the officer recommended that the 
application was approved.   
 
David Churchhouse, a representative of Shippon Parish Council, spoke 
objecting to the application. 
 
Ben Temple, the agent, spoke in support to the application. 
 
Councillor Catherine Webber, a local ward councillor, spoke in objection to the 
application  
 
The chair opened the debate and called for a motion.  As no notion was 
proposed, the chair put the officer’s recommendation forward to commence the 
debate.  The officer’s recommendation was to approve the application for an 
eight-bed home in multiple occupation.  There had been no objections from 
technical consultees.  However, members expressed concern that the site 
would have insufficient parking and a motion was proposed to defer the 
application pending a site visit.  This proposal was lost on being put to the 
vote.   
 
A motion was moved and seconded to approve the application with a condition 
that the number of people living in the house in multiple occupation would be 
restricted to a maximum of eight people.  This motion was carried on being put 
to the vote.   
RESOLVED: to approve planning application P22/V1380/FUL subject to the 
following conditions: 
Standard 
1. Commencement 3 years - Full Planning Permission 
2. Approved plans 
Prior to occupation 
3. HY7 - Car Parking 
4. HY20 - Bicycle Parking 
5. RE29 - Refuse Storage 
Informative 
6. HMO Licence Informative 
*With the condition that the number of people be kept to a maximum of 8 
people: 
‘Each bedroom within the development hereby permitted shall be let to one 
person only and there shall be no double occupancy. 
 
Reason: In the interests of neighbour amenity, highway safety and to ensure 
there is sufficient parking to serve the development (Policies CP33, CP35 and 

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 28 September 2022 

CP37 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and Policies DP16 and DP23 of 
the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2013 Part 2).’ 
 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 9.20 pm 

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 26 October 2022 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Planning Committee 

 
held on Wednesday, 26 October 2022 at 7.00 pm in 
Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, 
Abingdon, OX14 3JE 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Max Thompson (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Paul Barrow, Cheryl Briggs, 
Jenny Hannaby, Diana Lugova, Robert Maddison, Mike Pighills, and Janet Shelley 
Officers: Candida Basilio (Democratic Services Officer), Darius Zarazel (Democratic 
Services Officer), Penny Silverwood (Principal Major Applications Officer), Lauren Davies 
(Planning Officer), Emily Hamerton (Development Manager), Hanna Zembrzycka-Kisiel 
(Planning Officer), and Nathaniel Bamsey (Planning Officer)  
Guests: Councillor Richard Webber (Ward Member)  
 

Remote attendance: 
Officers:  Susie Royse (Broadcasting Officer), Sharon Crawford (Planning Officer), Vivian 
Williams (Senior Litigation and Planning Lawyer), Susannah Mangion (Planning Officer), 
Charles Packham (Senior Environmental Protection Officer), Darren Detheridge 
(Environmental Protection Officer), Stuart Roberts (environmental Health Officer), David 
Bell (Senior Flood Risk Engineer), and Tom Rice (Principal Planning Policy Officer) 
Guests:  Ian Marshall (Highways, Oxford County Council)  
 

58 Apologies for absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ron Batstone who 
is substituted with Councillor Paul Barrow. 

 

59 Chair's announcements  
 

The chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to 
be followed, and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements. 

 

60 Minutes  
 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 
7 September 2022 as a correct record and agree the Chair signs them 
as such. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 26 October 2022 

61 Declarations of interest  
 

Councillor Diana Lugova declared an interest in item 9 on the agenda 
due to application P22/V1120/FUL being part of her ward and so she 
would not take part in the debate or vote on this application.   
Councillor Val Shaw declared and interest in item 7 on the agenda due to 
application P22/V1091/FUL being part of her ward and so she would not 
take part in the debate or vote on this application. 

 

62 Urgent business  
 

There was no urgent business. 
 

63 Public participation  
 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was 
tabled at the meeting. 

 

64 P22/V1091/FUL - 2 Poplar Corner Wootton Village Boars Hill Oxford, 
OX1 5JL  

 

The committee considered planning application P22/V1091/FUL for the 
retrospective approval for a five-bedroom dwelling with external 
amendments to windows, a new gable (Amended plans received 07 July 
2022 to remove proposed car port), (Amended plans rec 23 August 2022 
to resolve discrepancies with the proposal as built), on land at 2 Poplar 
Corner, Wootton Village, Boars Hill, Oxford.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s 
planning history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of 
the agenda pack for the meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the 
application was brought to committee on the request of the Vale of White 
Horse District Council’s planning manager. The dwelling in the 
application was not built to any approved plans and therefore this 
application seeks retrospective permission. The planning officer then 
informed the committee that much of the external alterations on the 
approved scheme involve the loft conversion and that loft conversions 
are normally allowed under permitted development rights. 

 
The planning officer noted the objections from the Parish Council and 
local residents to the application but believed that the revised scheme 
would be in keeping with the local character of the area and would not 
cause harmful overlooking on the neighbouring properties. In addition, as 
the highways and forestry officers had no objection, subject to 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 26 October 2022 

conditions, the planning officer recommended this application be 
approved.  

 
 

Ian Bristow spoke on behalf of Wootton Parish Council, objecting to the 
application.   

 
Ifor Rhys, the agent representing the applicant, spoke in support of the 
application.   

 
 

The committee noted the comments of the highways officer and were 
satisfied with the analysis that there would be adequate space for off-
road parking and turning within the site, even with the additional 
expected vehicles brought by the loft conversion. In response to a 
question about the road junction into and out of the site, the planning 
officer informed the committee that the highways officer believes the 
junction to be adequate and safe.  

 
In response to the committee raising several points about what could be 
done if work is carried out that is not acceptable or agreed by the 
Council, the planning officer informed the members that the proposed 
conditions call for detail to be submitted prior to occupation and that 
failure to have acceptable plans will be considered by officers and the 
Council’s planning enforcement team.  

 
Ultimately, the committee expressed concern about the application due 
to it being a retrospective but agreed that they could see no material 
planning reasons for refusal. They also encouraged Wootton Parish 
Council to monitor the site and report any planning breached to the 
Council’s enforcement team.  

 
 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was carried 
on being put to the vote.   

 
RESOLVED: to approve planning application P22/V1091/FUL, subject to 
the following conditions:  

 
Standard: 
1. Approved plans 

 
Prior to Occupation: 
2. Materials as on plan 
3. Access, parking and turning in accordance with plan. 
4. Bicycle Parking 

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 26 October 2022 

5. Refuse Storage 
6. Landscaping scheme to be submitted 

 
Compliance: 
7. Landscaping implementation 
8. Obscured glazed windows 
9. Rooflights 

 
Informatives: 
10. Works within the Highway 
11. CIL 

 

65 P21/V2682/O - Land north of Hobbyhorse Lane Sutton Courtenay, 
OX14 4BB  

 

During this agenda item, the meeting length had reached almost two and 
a half hours. In accordance with the council’s Constitution, the committee 
voted to extend the meeting in order to finish this item. 

 
RESOLVED: that the meeting be extended beyond two and a half hours 
in order to complete the current item. 

 
The committee considered planning application P21/V2682/O for the 
residential development up to 175 dwellings (Outline Planning 
Application with all matters reserved except means of access to the site 
from Frilsham Street) and associated works (as per amended plans and 
documents received in June 2022), on land north of Hobbyhorse Lane 
Sutton Courtenay.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s 
planning history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of 
the agenda pack for the meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that this 
application was brought to the committee due to the objection of Sutton 
Courtenay Parish Council and local residents. The planning officer noted 
that some of the principal concerns about the application were over 
transport and access, flooding and drainage, land contamination, and air 
pollution and odour.  

 
On transport and access, the upcoming Oxfordshire County Council 
Culham river crossing scheme would increase road capacity, allowing for 
the increased number of road users brought by the proposed 
development, and that only a limited number of units, 43, will be allowed 
to be occupied before this infrastructure scheme is completed. In 
addition, the new access and road widening plans in the application were 

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 26 October 2022 

considered appropriate by the highways officer. Drainage was another 
key point raised and discussed by the planning officer. The proposed 
build form is kept away from the most affected areas affected by draining 
and the buildings raised 150mm above the existing ground level. On land 
contamination, the site is immediately adjacent to a landfill (Hobbyhorse 
Lane North) and near several other landfill sites. Two proposed levels of 
protection were proposed to mitigate the effects of methane, a special 
membrane on ground floor of all properties and a vent trench to guide 
methane migration away from the site. Subject to the maintained of the 
vent trench being secured in a S106 agreement, officers consider the 
site to comply with Local Plan policies DP27 and LPP2. Air pollution and 
odour where also in some of the objections raised due to the landfill and 
composting site (around 800m from the site) which is noticed in the 
village.  

 
Ultimately, as there were no objections raised by officers on technical 
grounds, the planning officer recommended the application be approved 
subject to conditions.  

 
 

Councillor Hugo Raworth spoke on behalf of Sutton Courtenay Parish 
Council, objecting to the application.   

 
Anne Morgan-Smith spoke objecting to the application.   

 
Jim Rawlings, the agent representing the applicant, supported by Marc 
Rennie and Sarah Kirby, spoke in support of the application.  

 
Councillor Richard Webber, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to 
the application.   

 
 

The committee then discussed the application in detail with the planning 
officer, who was supported by several other officers from the Vale of 
White Horse District Council and Oxfordshire County Council, who 
assisted the committee in answering questions on technical matters.  

 
It was noted that a similar application, submitted in 2017, was rejected 
based on drainage (it proposed a pumping station which were not 
considered appropriate), highways issues (the County Council objected 
due to its impact on the road network and the lack of funding for its 
improvement), impact on trees (the vent trench was considered too close 
to the root protection area), and lack of S106. Although some of these 
points were addressed, the committee had similar points of contention 
about the current application – primarily about drainage, flooding, and 
highways issues.  

Page 14



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 26 October 2022 

The committee raised serious concerns about the impact this proposed 
development would have on highways in the area. An Oxfordshire 
County Council highways officer spoke to the committee about the 
proposed improvements to highways infrastructure, but the members 
believed that the lack of integration with active travel, lack of guarantees 
about the long-term sustainability of the proposed increased frequency of 
public transport, and the impact on parking in the area, were all points 
that need to be addressed but were not. In addition, the committee 
mentioned that the full development was dependant on the completion of 
the Culham river crossing scheme which could mean 43 dwellings 
occupied before the Oxfordshire County Council improvements to the 
highways are made. The committee also noted that the Thames Valley 
Crime Prevention Design Advisor objected to the application due to the 
existing road infrastructure in the village not being suitable for the traffic 
the proposed development would create.  

 
The committee also had concerns about the impacts that the odour, air 
pollution, and potential land contamination would have on the amenity of 
the residents who would occupy the proposed dwellings. The 
environmental protection officers informed the committee about the 2015 
soil samples which found no significant contamination. However, the 
committee agreed that more clarity is needed as to what is actually in the 
adjacent landfill site as the Hobbyhorse Lane North landfill was 
unlicenced, and information about what is actually in the site is limited. 
The details of how effective the current gas mitigation methods on the 
site are also unknown. Members also mentioned that they would have 
liked to see all potential gasses tested, not only carbon dioxide and 
methane. The council’s environmental health officer also discussed the 
effect that odour would have, suggesting that this would be felt by 
residents, but is something that should be controlled by the Environment 
Agency – who have not issued comments on the application. Ultimately, 
the committee maintained concerns about the health, safety, and 
wellbeing of the potential residents caused by odour and gases from the 
adjacent landfill and from the near composting site, grounds for refusal in 
the Local Plan under Development Policy 24.  

 
The members also discussed the potential flood risk on the site with the 
council’s senior flood risk engineer. However, it was still generally felt 
that the modelling was not properly accounting for climate change and 
therefore that the effects of flooding were not properly mitigated.  

 
A final point was raised by the committee about the legal liability for the 
vent trench maintenance, and who would be the responsible party if it 
failed, but this was not able to be answered at that time.  

 

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 26 October 2022 

Overall, the committee recognised that this site was allocated for housing 
in the local plan, however, it was agreed that, as this application was 
unacceptable on highway grounds, on containment mitigation, odour, 
flood risk, and as it lacked a section 106 agreement, it should be refused.  
 
 
A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse planning permission was 
carried on being put to the vote.   
 
RESOLVED: to refuse planning permission for application P21/V2682/O 
based on:  
 
Reason 1: 
Frilsham Street is in part, a designated by-way open to all traffic. It is 
used as a cycle route and provides access to the village hall. Frilsham 
Street is subject to on street car parking which narrows its useable width 
to a single lane. The increased traffic movements resulting from this 
proposal would fail to provide safe access for all users of Frilsham Street 
which is considered detrimental to highway safety and contrary to 
Development Policy 16 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 2 and paragraph 110 
(b) of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Reason 2: 
The village and application site are poorly served by public transport and 
therefore, occupants of the proposed housing would be reliant on private 
motor vehicles for most of their trips. The additional traffic movements 
associated with the proposed development, upon the local highway 
network described as "highly fraught" by Thames Valley Police, would be 
detrimental to the safety of highway users. As such the proposal is 
considered contrary to Development Policy 16 of the Local Plan 2031 
Part 2 and paragraph 110 (b) of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Reason 3: 
The site is subject to contamination from former land uses adjacent 
(east) of the site and the proposal fails to demonstrate  that the proposed 
contamination mitigation measures and particularly their future 
management are sufficient to ensure the protection of the health and 
well-being of the future occupants of the proposed development.  As 
such the proposal does not amount to sustainable development and 
would be contrary to Development Policies 24 and 27 of the Local Plan 
2031 Part 2 and paragraph 119 and 183 (c) of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
Reason 4: 
The site is subject to odour generated by a nearby composting facility 
(FCC Sutton Courtenay) and the proposal fails to provide sufficient 

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 26 October 2022 

information to fully assess the impacts of odour upon the living conditions 
of future residents. In particular the application fails to demonstrate how 
the impact of odour can be successfully / sufficiently mitigated, so that 
health and well-being of the future residents of the proposed 
development would not be negatively affected. As such the proposal 
does not amount to sustainable development and would be contrary to 
Development Policy 24 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 2 and paragraph 119 
of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Reason 5: 
The application site is subject to surface and ground water flooding. The 
proposal fails to demonstrate that it is flood resilient and resistant from all 
sources of flood risk and that flood risk will not be increased elsewhere 
taking account of the effects of climate change. As such the proposal 
would be contrary to Core Policy 42 (iii) of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, 
and paragraph 166 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Reason 6: 
In the absence of a s.106 agreement relating to the provision of 
affordable housing and financial contributions towards public transport, 
education, public art, street naming, waste bin provision, household 
waste and recycling centres and the provision of and management of 
public open spaces and play areas, the maintenance of the gas vent 
trench and a restriction to 43 dwelling occupations before the new 
Thames crossing is in use, the proposal would place increased pressure 
on these facilities and fail to provide the environmental, social, and 
recreational services needed to support this development. This is 
considered contrary to core policies 7, 24, 33 and 35 of the Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and development policies 20, 28 and 33 of 
the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2. 
 
Informative 
The sixth reason for refusal could be overcome by entering into a section 
106 agreement(s) with the Vale of White Horse District Council and 
Oxfordshire County Council to secure affordable housing, financial 
contributions towards infrastructure and services improvements. open 
spaces and play areas. 

 
 

66 P22/V1120/FUL - Site Of 1 Sugworth Crescent Radley Abingdon, 
OX14 2JR  

 

Consideration of planning application P22/V1120/FUL to be deferred to 
the next available planning committee meeting. 
 

 

Page 17



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 26 October 2022 

67 P21/V3123/FUL - Whitwick Grosvenor Road Oxford, OX2 9AX  
 

Consideration of planning application P21/V3123/FUL to be deferred to 
the next available planning committee meeting. 

 

68 P22/V2109/LB - Beaulieu Court Cottage Beaulieu Court Sunningwell 
Abingdon, OX13 6RQ  

 

Consideration of planning application P22/V2109/LB to be deferred to 
the next available planning committee meeting. 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 9.35 pm 

Page 18



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Planning Committee 

 
held on Wednesday, 9 November 2022 at 7.00 pm 
in Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, 
Abingdon, OX14 3JE 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Max Thompson (Chair), Jerry Avery, Ron Batstone, Jenny Hannaby, 
Diana Lugova, Robert Maddison, Mike Pighills and Janet Shelley 
Officers: Darius Zarazel (Democratic Services Officer), Emily Hamerton (Development 
Manager), Lauren Davies (Planning Officer), Stuart Walker (Planning Officer), Lewis 
Dixey (Planning Officer)  
 

Remote attendance: 
Councillors: Debby Hallett (Ward Member) and Emily Smith (Ward Member) 
Officers: Sharon Crawford (Planning Officer)   

 
 

69 Chair's announcements  
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and outlined the meeting procedure to 
be followed. He also explained emergency evacuation procedure. 

 
70 Apologies for absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Val Shaw, who was substituted 
with Councillor Jerry Avery. 

 
71 Declarations of interest  
 

Councillor Janet Shelley declared an interest in item 9 on the agenda due to 
application P22/V0416/FUL being in her ward and so she would not take part in the 
debate or vote on this application. 

 
72 Urgent business  
 

There was no urgent business.  
 
 
73 Public participation  
 

The Committee noted the list of the members of the public who had registered to 
speak at the meeting. 

 

Page 19



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

74 P22/V1120/FUL - Site Of 1 Sugworth Crescent Radley Abingdon, OX14 2JR  
 

The application was withdrawn from the agenda due to the applicants request and 
was moved to the Planning Committee meeting on 30 November 2022.  

 
75 P21/V3123/FUL - Whitwick Grosvenor Road Oxford, OX2 9AX  
 

The committee considered planning application P21/V3123/FUL for the demolition of 
existing building comprising dwellinghouse and self-contained flat; erection of 3 no. 
5-bed detached dwellings, each with parking, private amenity space, bin and bicycle 
storage. Improvements to vehicular access from Grosvenor Road. (As clarified by 
revised tree protection and service routes plan received on 7 January 2022 and 
Biodiversity Assessment received 8 March 2022 and as further clarified by full 
Biodiversity metric, photomontage and appeal note accompanying Agent's email 
dated 26 April 2022 and Plot size analysis received on 18 May 2022 & as amplified 
by Analysis Draft v2 - AO & Plot Size Analysis Plan Rev A received 18 May 2022). 
(As amended by drawing nos 20130 - PV0010 - C and 20130 - PP1011 – C altering 
access arrangements), on land at Whitwick, Grosvenor Road, Oxford.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the 
meeting.   

 
Due to technical difficulties, the development manager presented this item. The 
development manager introduced the report and highlighted that this was called into 
the committee by a local ward member, Councillor Debby Hallett.  

 
The development manager informed the committee that the application sought 
permission for construction of three detached five bed houses from the site of an 
existing dwelling and self-contained flat, accessed through private roads. The site 
was also noted as not being within the Oxford Green Belt. The main concerns of 
neighbours and the parish council were that the proposal was overdevelopment and 
harmful to the character of the area. Although within the density parameters for the 
area, policies indicated that lower density was required where higher density would 
harm the character of the area.  

 
The development manager also spoke about the concerns that residents and the 
parish had over the designs of the dwellings. It was noted by members that the 
design of each dwelling is different, but they do have similar features and use the 
same materials. In addition, the officers report stated that the distance between these 
proposed dwellings and the neighbours was in excess of requirements and so would 
be considered acceptable. Ultimately, as there was no objection from technical 
consultees, subject to conditions, the officers recommended that the application be 
approved. 

 
 

Gilliane Sills and David Wyatt spoke objecting to the application.   
 

Matt Chadwick, the agent representing the applicant, spoke in support of the 
application.   

 
Councillor Debby Hallett, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.   

 

Page 20



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

 
The committee had conducted a site visit prior to the discussion of the application. 
Some members expressed a desire to defer the application in order to get more 
clarity about the private road leading to the site and about the proposed condition put 
forward by the applicant that they were willing to make improvements to the road 
within their site boundary. Although this improvement was welcomed by the 
committee, as the road was not owned by the applicant or agent, it was unknown 
how this condition would be applied.  
 
Although the houses proposed in the application would be set back from the road, 
the committee felt that the use of the same materials for each of the proposed 
dwellings, and their similar designs, would make them out of character with the 
unique building designs from site to site. Members noted that deferring the 
application to propose a condition that insisted on different materials used for the 
three buildings could be proposed. In addition, the committee also raised concerns 
about the loss of biodiversity on site and about the potential loss of trees.  

 
For these reasons, some members believed that deferring the application in order to 
get more information about these issues would be beneficial. However, the 
committee felt like this deferral was not appropriate and a decision could be made at 
the meeting. 

 
A motion, moved and seconded, to defer the application in order to get more 
information about the road and traffic issues, material and designs used in the 
buildings, and about the impact on biodiversity and trees on site was lost when being 
put to the vote.   

 
 

A major concern raised by the committee was that the proposal was harmful to the 
character and appearance of the area due to the level of development and the loss of 
greenery. Another concern the committee had was that the use of the same materials 
between the three buildings would also be out of character with the area due to the 
unique building design site to site. It was noted by the committee that these points 
would put the application in contravention with the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Local Plan, and the Neighbourhood Development Plan.  

 
 

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was carried on being put to 
the vote 

 
RESOLVED: to refuse planning application P21/V3123/FUL, for the following 
reasons: 

 
1. The site occupies a prominent, spacious and verdant location on the 

edge of Harcourt Hill which provides an appropriate step change in 
terms of density from the open rural land to the south to the higher 
density development to the north and north west. Having regard to the 
siting, layout and provision of new building across the whole plot width, 
the proposal to build three substantial houses on the site would cause 
considerable harm to the locally distinctive character and appearance 
of the surrounding area and provides insufficient opportunities to 
improve biodiversity. Biodiversity improvements should be provided on 
site to secure development more in keeping with the spacious and 

Page 21



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

verdant character of the area and the adjacent open countryside. As 
such the proposal is contrary to Policies CP23 and CP46 of the 
adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 1, and Policies HS1, 
HS3 and G2 of the North Hinksey Neighbourhood Plan. Whilst the 
council is mindful of making efficient use of land, the harm to the 
character of the area in this case outweighs the benefits and the 
proposed development would be contrary to the advice in Paragraph 
124 d) and e) of the NPPF.  

 
2. The area is characterised by a wide variety of building styles and 

materials with no two neighbouring plots in the vicinity being the same. 
The proposed use of the same materials across the three substantial 
dwellings would create a uniformity of materials that does not respond 
positively to the site or the surroundings and would harm the unique 
and varied character of the area. As such the proposal is contrary to 
policy CP37 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 1, 
and Policies HS1 of the North Hinksey Neighbourhood Plan, the 
accompanying Parish Character Assessment (Harcourt Hill Character 
Area), advice in the Joint South and Vale Design Guide and the NPPF. 

 
 
76 P22/V2109/LB - Beaulieu Court Cottage Beaulieu Court Sunningwell Abingdon, 

OX13 6RQ  
 

The committee considered listed building consent application P22/V2109/LB for the 
addition of one Velux conservation style rooflight in north elevation of main roof to 
match those existing, on land at Beaulieu Court Cottage, Beaulieu Court, 
Sunningwell, Abingdon.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the 
meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the application was 
brought to the committee as the applicant was related to a member of the planning 
service. 

 
The planning officer informed the committee that the application was for the addition 
of a single roof light to a grade 2 listed building, which would be in addition to the five 
existing rooflights following the granting of listed building consent in 2018. As there 
was no perceived harm to the character of listed building and no objection from 
conservation officers, the application was recommended for approval.  

 
The councillors asked the planning officer if this application would have come to the 
committee if it was not submitted by a relative of the planning service and they 
confirmed that it would not have. Overall, the committee was satisfied with the 
planning officers report and recommendations and could see no material planning 
reason for refusal.  

 
 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the listed building consent application 
was carried on being put to the vote.   

 

Page 22



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

RESOLVED: to approve listed building consent application P22/V2109/LB, subject to 
the following conditions:  

 
Standard Conditions: 
1. Commencement within 3 years 
2. Development completed in accordance with approved plans 

 
Compliance Conditions: 
3. Details and materials in accordance with application 

 
77 P22/V0416/FUL - Land south of Curie Avenue and west of Eighth Street Harwell 

Campus Didcot, OX11 0DF  
 

The committee considered planning application P22/V0416/FUL for the erection of 
two employment buildings, with associated landscaping and car parking (as 
amended by plans and documentation received 23 August 2022, 16 September 
2022, 5 October and 20 October 2022), on land south of Curie Avenue and west of 
Eighth Street, Harwell Campus, Didcot.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the 
meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the application was 
brought to committee due to the objection of East Hendred Parish Council. 

 
The planning officer highlighted that the original application was a hybrid application 
for four buildings, two being outline and two in detail, but that this application was 
seeking permission for two buildings. Building one was a contemporary design 
approximately 65 metres long, 56 metre wide, and 14.6 metres at the highest point. 
Building two was a more conventional design 85 metres long, 56 metres wide, and 
12.6 metres high. Vehicle access was from Curie Avenue and there was a separate 
Heavy Goods Vehicle access into a shared service yard with enough parking spaces 
for those currently provided on site.   

 
The planning officer considered the principle of development acceptable. As there 
was no adverse impact on flood risk, ecology, archaeology, highways safety, subject 
to further detail on the proposed planning conditions, the adjoining woodland, or 
permitter landscaping, the planning officer recommended the application be 
approved, subject to conditions. 

 
 

Steven Roberts, the agent representing the applicant, spoke in support of the 
application.   

  
Councillor Janet Shelley, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.   

 
 

The committee was satisfied with the planning officers report, and the conditions laid 
out in them, and found no material planning reasons to refuse the application. 

 
 

Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was carried on being put 
to the vote.   

  
RESOLVED: to approve planning application P22/V0416/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:  

 
Standard: 
1. Commencement of development within 3 years 
2. Development in accordance with approved plans 

 
Pre-commencement: 
3. Construction traffic management plan 
4. Sustainable drainage scheme 
5. Foul drainage scheme 
6. Biodiversity offsetting 
7. Biodiversity enhancement plan 
8. Rare plant species mitigation strategy 
9. Landscape scheme 
10. Landscape management plan 
11. Rooflights to prevent light spill 
12. Community Employment Plan 
13. Tree protection implementation 

 
Pre-occupation: 
14. Demolish/vacate buildings on Innovation Quarter 
15. SUDs compliance report 
16. Car parking in accordance with plan 
17. Cycle parking in accordance with plan 
18. EV charging points 
19. Public art 

 
Compliance: 
20. Materials 
21. Ecological Mitigation 
22. Travel Plan 
23. External Lighting 

 
Informatives: 
1. Biodiversity offsetting 
2. Thames Water 

 
78 P22/V1786/HH - Hillsview 13 Sunningwell Road Sunningwell Abingdon, OX13 

6BJ  
 

The committee considered planning application P22/V1786/HH for the application to 
raise existing roof ridge to form chalet bungalow with rooms in the roof (part 
retrospective) (As amended by plans received 01.09.22), on land at Hillsview, 13 
Sunningwell Road, Sunningwell, Abingdon.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the 
meeting.   

 

Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that this was called into the 
committee by a local ward member, Councillor Emily Smith. The application itself 
was part retrospective and fell within the Oxford Green Belt. Work had originally 
commenced on the site under the assumption that it was allowed via permitted 
development rights. However, as a prior approval application was required, this was 
not the case. In response to this site background, a condition for this application for 
the removal of those works within two months was proposed and agreed by the 
applicant. It was emphasised however, that these works were not material 
considerations to this application.  

 
The planning officer informed the committee that in order for an application to be 
acceptable it would need to meet the criteria for developments in a green belt or be 
considered to be a special circumstance. As the applicant retained the right to build a 
single storey extension to the rear of their property through permitted development 
rights, something the applicant considered a fallback position in case this application 
was refused, this would be considered a material planning consideration for the 
application and so provide the special circumstance needed for the proposed 
development to be acceptable in a green belt. 

 
The reason the planning officer believed this permitted development position would 
provide the circumstances which would allow for the approval of the application was 
that the fallback development would have a larger increase in the overall footprint of 
the property over a larger area than that proposed in the application. In addition, as 
the development in the application would be contained within the existing footprint of 
the building while ensuring the height of the building was in keeping with the others in 
the area, that distance between the rear windows and the rear neighbour would be in 
excess of the design guide, and that it would allow for a restriction to be put on 
further permitted development rights, the planning officer believed this application 
should be approved.  

 
Ultimately, as the planning officer believed that the proposal would not be considered 
overbearing on the neighbours on either side, had sufficient parking, was fully 
contained in the existing footprint, and had a simplified design in comparison to the 
permitted development option, which is a material consideration, it was 
recommended for approval. 

 
 

John Hughes, Richard Adams, and Stuart Morgan spoke objecting to the application.   
 

Kathy Hills, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.   
 

Councillor Emily Smith and Debby Hallett, local ward councillors, spoke objecting to 
the application.  

 
 

The committee had conducted a site visit prior to the discussion of this application. 
When discussing the impact the proposed development would have on Sunningwell 
Road, it was noted that there were lots of variety in houses and lots of bungalow 
conversions in the area.  

 
The committee also agreed with the planning officer’s report that the proposed 
development was a better option than the applicant using their permitted 
development rights for a single storey rear extension as the application presented to 

Page 25



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

the committee was neater, contained within the existing footprint of the building, of a 
lower total volume increase, and fitting in with the character of the area with the 
potential of a condition to restrict further permitted development rights. An additional 
potential condition was also raised for the rooflight height to be over 1.7metres, and 
this was agreed by the committee to be appropriate.  

 
Ultimately, as the permitted development fallback scenario was considered a realistic 
one which would be more harmful than proposed application, and the application was 
not out of character with the area or harmful to neighbours’ amenity, the special 
circumstances that allowed for this development was considered to be met and the 
committee agreed to approve the application subject to conditions. 

 
 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was carried on being put 
to the vote.   

 
RESOLVED: to approve planning application P22/V1786/HH, subject to the following 
conditions:  

 
Standard: 
1. Approved plans 

 
Compliance: 
2. Materials in accordance with the application 
3. Permitted development restriction for extensions 
4. Maintain parking spaces free from obstruction 
5. Removal of unauthorised works 
6. Rooflight sill height (extension) 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 9.15 pm 

Page 26



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Planning Committee 

 
held on Wednesday, 25 January 2023 at 7.00 pm in 
Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, 
Abingdon, OX14 3JE 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Max Thompson (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Ron Batstone, 
Cheryl Briggs, Jenny Hannaby, Diana Lugova, Robert Maddison, 
Mike Pighills, and Janet Shelley 
Officers: Darius Zarazel (Democratic Services Officer), Emily Hamerton 
(Development Manager), Martin Deans (Planning Officer), Stuart Walker 
(Planning Officer), and Cathie Scotting (Planning Officer)  

 
Remote attendance: 
Officers: Susie Royse (Broadcasting Officer) and Nathaniel Bamsey 
(Planning Officer)    
Guests: Councillor Debby Hallett, Edward Church (Countryside Officer), and 
Leigh Travers (Drainage Engineer), Will Pedley (Oxfordshire County Council 
Highways Officer), Ian Marshall (Oxfordshire County Council Highways 
Officer)   
 

98 Chair's announcements  
 

The chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and outlined the meeting 
procedure to be followed. He also explained the emergency evacuation 
procedure. 

 

99 Apologies for absence  
 

There was no apologies for absence.  
 

100 Minutes  
 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 4 January 
2023 as a correct record and agree that the Chair sign these as such. 

 

101 Declarations of interest  
 

There was no declarations of interest.  

Page 27



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

 

102 Urgent business  
 

There was no urgent business.  
 

103 Public participation  
 

The committee noted the list of the members of the public who had 
registered to speak at the meeting. 

 

104 P20/V2298/FUL - Land at Yarnells Hill, Oxford  
 

The committee considered planning application P20/V2298/FUL for the 
erection of three detached dwellings, including access and landscaping 
(as amended by drawings and information received 27 July 2021 and 
amplified by consultants’ reports received 8 September 2022 and 
additional information received 10 October 2022), on land at Yarnells 
Hill, Oxford.  

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s 
planning history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of 
the agenda pack for the meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the 
application was called into the committee by a local ward member, 
Councillor Debby Hallett. The planning officer informed the committee 
that the application was for three new houses on a greenfield site at 
Yarnells Hill.  

 
In addition, the planning officer noted the main objections to the 
application which were on biodiversity grounds, particularly around the 
potential impact on the local badger population, and the impact on the 
alkaline fen in Raleigh Park and a stream running adjacent to the site. 
The planning officer also indicated that fen was defined as irreplaceable 
habitat in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  

 
However, due to the mitigation methods outlined in the report and 
secured through potential conditions, the planning officer believed that 
there could be biodiversity net gain, that the badgers’ sett could be 
moved and controlled through Natural England and their licencing 
scheme, and that the impacts of surface and fowl water on the alkaline 
fen could be limited through several sustainable drainage systems, 
maintained over time, and through conditions during the construction 
phase of the development. 

 

Page 28



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

In addition, the planning officer considered that the proposed houses 
were of contemporary design and that there was sufficient distance 
between the properties, and the neighbours, so that they did not 
adversely impact neighbour’s amenity. As technical officers believed that 
the impact on trees, biodiversity, traffic, and parking were considered 
acceptable, the planning officer recommended the application be 
approved, subject to conditions.  

 
 

Stephen Parkinson spoke objecting to the application.   
 

Ian Gillespie, the agent representing the applicant, and Dr Peter 
Shepherd, Sam Pucknell, and Ed Tyack spoke in support of the 
application.   

 
Councillor Debby Hallett, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the 
application.   

 
 

The committee had conducted a site visit prior to the discussion of the 
application. Members then asked the countryside officer, Edward 
Church, as to why he was unable to support the application but also why 
he did not object to the application either. In response, the countryside 
officer confirmed that he believed that a development close to the 
alkaline fen would pose a risk but that the applicant had provided 
detailed mitigation measures. Therefore, the countryside officer felt that 
on balance, despite the risk, he could not object to the application.  

 
The committee then asked the drainage engineer, Leigh Travers, about 
how the council might ensure the maintenance of the drainage scheme 
so that it would never have an impact on the fen. In response, the 
drainage engineer confirmed that a maintenance management company 
would be responsible for this, but none would be appointed until after the 
application was approved. Furthermore, the planning officer informed 
members that maintenance schedule logs could be required through 
condition so that they could be examined to ensure regular maintenance.   

 
Members continued to express concern about the proposed 
development and the impact it would have on the fen and the badger 
population as they believed that there was no way to guarantee they 
would not be degraded over time as a result of the application. Members 
felt the responsibility to the NPPF was to ensure the protection of this 
irreplaceable habitat, and that the lack of clarity around the conditions 
extending into the future and the lack of certainty of the protections they 
would provide were not considered to be sufficient.  

 

Page 29



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

Overall, members maintained concerns about the site’s suitability for 
development due to the potential risk of damage to the fen and the 
impact the relocation of the badger sett would have on the badger 
population. Therefore, despite mitigation, the committee believed that the 
proposed development would lead to unacceptable risk of harm to 
irreplaceable habitat, contrary to local plan, neighbourhood plan, and the 
NPPF. 

 
 

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was carried on 
being put to the vote. 

 
RESOLVED: to refuse planning application P20/V2298/FUL, for the 
following reason: 

 
Despite the mitigation measures proposed, the development would 
lead to an unacceptable risk and harm to irreplaceable habitat and 
to protected species and habitat, having regard to the sensitivity of 
the nearby alkaline fen to type and amount of water supply and to 
the impact on the badger sett on the site. This is contrary to policy 
CP46 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, to policy GS2 of the 
North Hinksey Neighbourhood Plan 2031, and to the NPPF. 

 

105 P22/V1757/FUL - Street Record, Kingston Road, Frilford, Abingdon, 
OX13 6QL  

 

The committee considered planning application P22/V1757/FUL for 
improvement works to Frilford Junction incorporating widening of A415 
Kingston Road and A338 Oxford Road with provision of 3 metre wide 
cycle way on the west side of the A338 and south side of the A415 
Kingston Road and widening of the footway to east side of A338 to 2 
metres, widening of A415 Frilford Road with provision of 2 metre wide 
cycle feeder lane and relocated bus stop waiting area (as amplified by 
additional information received 09 November 2022), on land at Street 
Record, Kingston Road, Frilford Abingdon.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s 
planning history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of 
the agenda pack for the meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the 
application was for highway improvement works at the Frilford junction 
and formed part of the highway’s mitigation associated with the current 
hybrid planning application on the land east of Kingston Bagpuize 
(planning reference P22/V0248/O).  

 

Page 30



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

The planning officer highlighted the proposed works which included the 
widening of the northbound A338 road on the western side, and on 
southern edge of the A415, and the inclusion of a cycle way together 
with new landscaping to mitigate the loss of an existing hedgerow. The 
planning officer also confirmed that the principle of the proposal was 
acceptable and that there was no harm caused to any heritage assets 
and that the biodiversity loss would be addressed by condition.  

 
On the concern by residents and parish councils that the application did 
not address all the issues at the junction, the planning officer informed 
members that the applicant only needed to mitigate the impact of their 
own development not all the extant issues.  

 
Finally, in respect of the wider Oxfordshire County Council (highway 
authority) scheme of improvements, the timeframe for this was unknown. 
In this application, the improvements were explicitly put forward as an 
alternative to a contribution to the highway authority improvement 
scheme to allow the Kingston Bagpuize hybrid application to go forward.  

 
As the planning officer believed that there were no technical planning 
reasons for refusal, he recommended it be approved subject to 
conditions, a S106 legal agreement, securing the works or for land to be 
transferred to the highway authority should it be required for further 
improvements.  

 
 

Shaun Forrestal spoke on behalf of Frilford Parish, objecting to the 
application. Councillor Michael Hoath spoke on behalf of Marcham 
Parish Council objecting to the application. 

 
Roger Smith, the agent representing the applicant, Vicky Bilton, and 
Sean Mclntyre spoke in support of the application.   

 
Councillors Eric Batts, local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the 
application. A statement was read out on behalf of Councillor Catherine 
Webber, a local ward councillor, who couldn’t attend the meeting in 
support of the application. 

 
 

The committee then clarified with the planning officer that the application 
was a standalone application not dependant on the any future highway 
authority improvement scheme and should be judged on its own planning 
merits.  

 
Members then asked Oxfordshire County Council highway officer, Will 
Pedley, about the turning movements into the junction but were informed 

Page 31



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

that the highway authority did not have any concerns about this. In 
addition, on the long-term improvement plan, the highway officer could 
not say how much of this application would be incorporated into their 
longer-term plan but that the optioneering study should be complete by 
summer 2023. Ultimately, the highways officer reviewed the scheme as 
part of the mitigation for the Kingston Bagpuize application and was 
content that it did adequately mitigate its impact, actually going beyond 
that, and that their modelling assessment accounted for all other 
permitted development in the area and the traffic associated with the 
development permitted in the local plan.  

 
Members also noted that should the application be passed, the 
timeframe for its implementation would be linked to a residential 
occupation condition in the forthcoming Kingston Bagpuize housing 
development, and that if this housing application did not pass, then this 
junction improvement would not go ahead even if it was approved.  

 
The committee then asked the planning officer if the funds could be 
ensured to be used by the highway authority for the improvement to the 
Frilford junction alone and not diverted elsewhere, and this was 
confirmed by the planning officer as it would form an explicit part of the 
legal agreement.  

 
Overall, as members considered the application to be a positive 
improvement to the junction, they agreed the application should be 
approved subject to conditions.  

 
 

A motion, moved and seconded, to delegate the authority to grant 
planning permission to the head of planning was carried on being put to 
the vote.   

 
RESOLVED: to authorise the head of planning to grant planning 
permission for application P22/V1757/FUL, subject to the following:  

 
1) the completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure the highway 
works. 

 
2) the following conditions: 

 
1. Commencement 
2. Approved plans 
3. Tree protection 
4. Landscaping scheme 
5. Construction Management Plan 
6. Biodiversity enhancement 

Page 32



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

7. Biodiversity offsetting 
8. Archaeological scheme of investigation 
9. Archaeological evaluation 

 

106 P22/V2053/RM - Land south of Park Road, Faringdon, SN7 7PL  
 

The committee considered reserved matters application P22/V2053/RM 
for access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale in relation to the 
Extra Care Facility following Outline Approval P17/V1082/O. (As 
amended by drawings received 22 September 2022 and amended 
drawings and information received November 2022). Hybrid application 
for the demolition of existing building/structures and the comprehensive 
redevelopment of Land South of Park Road, Faringdon, comprising up to 
380 residential dwellings (Use Class C3) including affordable homes, 
provision of an Extra Care facility (Use Class C2 or C3), the provision of 
land for a school (Use Class D1), vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access 
from Park Road and Sands Hill, parking, public open space, landscaping, 
sustainable drainage, and other associated works: 'Phase 1' (Full 
details): 103 residential dwellings (Use Class C3), access and parking, 
public open space, landscaping, sustainable drainage, parking and other 
associated works. Outline: Up to 277 residential dwellings (Use Class 
C3), Extra Care Facility (Use Class C3 or C2), land for a school (Use 
Class D1), access and parking, public open space, landscaping, 
sustainable drainage, parking and other associated work with all matters 
reserved, on land south of Park Road, Faringdon.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s 
planning history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of 
the agenda pack for the meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the 
application was brought to the committee due to the objection of 
Faringdon Town Council. The application itself was a reserved matters 
application for the provision of a care facility. This was originally granted 
as part of a hybrid application detailing access from Park Road and full 
details of 103 dwellings, and an outline of 277 houses and an illustrative 
layout of the care facility.  

 
The planning officer highlighted that the care facility site was on the 
corner of Steppe Lane, Proctor Way and Brickell Way and that the 
majority of the building was three stories tall, with small parts being four 
storeys, and included a two-storey projection. The surrounding properties 
were two and a half and two stories tall. As the care facility was set back 
around 15 metres from the frontage of the road, and there was a 2.5-
meter difference in height between the surrounding residential buildings 
and the proposed building, the planning officer believed that the 

Page 33



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

application would not be a detriment to the amenity of the surrounding 
neighbours. The planning officer also noted that the development 
comprised 47 per cent of the affordable housing across the whole 
development site.  

 
As the planning officer was satisfied that the building height would not 
adversely affect neighbouring amenity and that it complied with the 
parameter plan, she recommended the application be approved subject 
to conditions.  

 
 

Councillor Mike Wise spoke on behalf of Faringdon Town Council, 
objecting to the application.   

 
Andy Tansill, the agent representing the applicant, spoke in support of 
the application.   

 
 

The committee asked the planning officer about the background of the 
reserved matters application and if there were any previous care home 
plans submitted. In response, the planning officer confirmed that 
illustrative plans were submitted at the outline stage and at phase two. 
The outline permission for the care facility had been approved for 60 
units and for the specific size of the site. The blocks were changed from 
individual housing in the illustrative plans into a single block, but 
members were informed that this was considered necessary for 
operational and safety reasons.  

 
Members then asked the planning officer about the water capacity study 
for water supply that was a condition on the outline permission and noted 
that this was discharged in relation to the residential development. The 
planning officer advised that the agents did not believe there was an 
issue with water supply, however details for this were covered by outline 
conditions and that this could be highlighted in the informative regarding 
outline conditions. 

 
Members also asked the planning officer for clarification about the 
Faringdon neighbourhood plan and if the proposal met its policies. In 
response, the planning officer highlighted that it was policy 4.7c which 
required a development’s height to respond to its surroundings and the 
character of the immediate area and the members of the committee were 
satisfied that the proposed development was in conformity with these 
requirements.  

 

Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

Overall, members believed that there were no material planning reasons 
for refusal and agreed that the application should be approved, subject to 
conditions.  

 
 

A motion, moved and seconded, to authorise the Head of Planning, in 
consultation with the chair of the planning committee, to approve the 
reserved matters application was carried on being put to the vote.   

 
RESOLVED: to authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the 
chair of the planning committee, to approve the reserved matters 
application P22/V2053/RM, subject to: 

 
i) the completion of a Deed of Variation to the S106 agreement 

pertaining to planning permission P17/V1082, to omit reference to a 
particular specialist housing provider; and 

 
ii) the following conditions: 

 
Standard: 
1. Development in accordance with approved plans 

 
Pre-commencement: 
2. Protect hedges during construction 
3. Construction Management Statement 
4. Access and Vision Splays 
5. Car Parking 
6. Landscaping – Tree Species 
7. External Plant (Noise and Visual Impact) 
8. Details of external lighting 
9. Details of cycle parking (including covered parking) 
10. Details of electric vehicle charging points 

 
Informative: 
11. Details in respect of outline conditions including water supply 
12. Commencement 

 

107 P22/V1309/FUL - Thickets, Hinksey Hill, Oxford, OX1 5BQ  
 

During this agenda item, the meeting length had reached almost two and 
a half hours. In accordance with the council’s Constitution, the committee 
voted to extend the meeting in order to finish this item. 

 
The committee considered planning application P22/V1309/FUL for the 
S73 application to vary condition 2 (approved plans) on application 
P21/V2852/FUL-change car lift to vehicular ramp. (As amended by 

Page 35



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

additional information received 22 June 2022, as amplified by additional 
plan received 11 July 2022 and as amended by plan received 21 
December 2022) (Application for full planning permission for demolition 
and construction of a replacement dwelling. Amendments to previously 
approved permission P18/V3111/FUL), on land at Thickets, Hinksey Hill, 
Oxford.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s 
planning history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of 
the agenda pack for the meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the 
application was brought to the committee by the development manager. 
In addition, the planning officer corrected the report as Councillors Diana 
Lugova and Bob Johnston were not ward members to the application.  

 
The planning officer informed the committee that the application was for 
the varying of permission for application P21/V2852/FUL to remove the 
approved car lift to the basement and replace it with a ramp. The site 
itself was home to a detached dwelling set back from the road, within the 
Oxford Green Belt, and with several trees being protected via a tree 
protection order.  

 
Although the new ramp and access would result in the loss of several 
trees, the planning officer confirmed that the tree officer found this 
acceptable. However, the tree officer did request a condition to be put on 
the approval of the application for their replacement, and that the trees 
with a protection order also be protected via conditions. 

 
The planning officer also informed the committee that there were no 
additional car parking spaces proposed in the application and that there 
was a recommended condition which would limit the use of the basement 
to only what was shown on the plans. Due to this limited amendment and 
the suggested conditions, the planning officer did not believe this 
variation would adversely impact the Green Belt. 

 
Overall, as there were no objections from technical consultees, the 
planning officer recommended that planning permission be granted 
subject to conditions.  

 
 

Councillor Linda Goodhead spoke on behalf of South Hinksey Parish 
Council, objecting to the application. 

 
Michael Ergatoudis, the agent representing the applicant, spoke in 
support of the application.   

Page 36



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

 
 

The committee asked about where the replacement trees would be 
located and planning officer confirmed that the landscaping scheme in 
the conditions would require the applicant to outline both the location and 
species of the replacement trees, which would then be confirmed with 
the council.  

 
Members also raised the potential of conditioning a restriction on 
permitted development rights. However, as the application was only for a 
variation on an already approved plan, the planning officer did not 
consider it reasonable to restrict permitted development rights on a part 
of the site not covered in this application.  

 
Members raised concerns about the potential use of the basement for 
other uses outside of that described by the application, however, they 
were satisfied that the wording of the conditions was sufficient to prevent 
this and that it would only allow for the use as shown on the plans.  

 
Overall, as members could not find any material planning reasons for 
refusal, they agreed to approve the application subject to conditions.  

 
 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was carried 
on being put to the vote. 

 
RESOLVED: to approve planning application P22/V1309/FUL, subject to 
the following conditions:  

 
Standard: 
1. Time Limit - Variation of Condition 
2. Approved plans 

 
Prior to commencement: 
3. Tree protection (implementation as approved) 
4. Drainage Details (Surface Water) 
5. Drainage Details (Foul Water) 
6. Landscaping Scheme (trees and shrubs only) 

 
Prior to occupation: 
7. Car Parking (Full) 

 
Compliance: 
8. Materials in Accordance with Application 
9. Permitted Development Restriction on Single Dwelling Extensions 
10. No basement conversion 

Page 37



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 25 January 2023 

 
Informatives: 
11. Community Infrastructure Levy 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 9.50 pm 

Page 38



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Planning Committee 

 
held on Tuesday, 14 February 2023 at 7.00 pm in 
Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, 
Abingdon, OX14 3JE 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Max Thompson (Chair), Ron Batstone, Cheryl Briggs, Hayleigh Gascoigne, 
Jenny Hannaby, Diana Lugova, Robert Maddison and Janet Shelley 
Officers: Darius Zarazel (Democratic Services Officer), Emily Hamerton (Development 
Manager), Lewis Dixey (Planning Officer), and Stuart Walker (Planning Officer)  
 

Remote attendance: 
Officers: Susie Royse (Broadcasting Officer) and Katherine Canavan (Planning Officer)  
Guests: Will Pedley (Oxfordshire County Council Senior Transport Planner), Tim Willisam 
(Environmental Health Officer), and Katherine Hamer (Oxfordshire County Council 
Principal Transport Planner) 
 

108 Chair's announcements  
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and outlined the meeting 
procedure to be followed. He also explained the emergency evacuation 
procedure. 

 

109 Apologies for absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mike Pighills, who 
was substituted for Councillor Hayleigh Gascoigne, and Councillor Val 
Shaw.  

 

110 Declarations of interest  
 

Councillor Cheryl Briggs declared an interest in item 7 on the agenda 
due to application P22/V2285/O being in her ward and so she would not 
take part in the debate or vote on this application. 

 

111 Urgent business  
 

There was no urgent business.  
 
 
 

Page 39



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

112 Public participation  
 

The committee noted the list of the members of the public who had 
registered to speak at the meeting. 

 

113 P22/V0248/O - Land East of Kingston Bagpuize  
 

The committee considered planning application P22/V0248/O for a 
hybrid planning application comprising: 1) outline planning permission, 
with all matters reserved except for access, for development of up to 660 
(use class C3), extra care development of up to 70 units (use class C2), 
a local centre of up to 0.5ha (use classes C2, E(a), E(b), E(c), E(d), E(e), 
E(f), E(g)(i), F1, F2), a one form entry primary school on an area for 
educational provision of up to 2.2ha, playing field and car parking, 
informal open space, landscape and sustainable drainage areas, access, 
footpaths, cycle ways, infrastructure and associated engineering works 
(including a noise attenuation bund and acoustic fence) and 2) full 
planning permission for construction of a three arm roundabout to the 
A420 (Oxford Road), a four arm roundabout to the A415 (Abingdon 
Road) and link road between (as amended by information received 22 
June 2022, 5 July 2022 and additional transport information received 18 
August 2022 and additional air quality information received 29 November 
2022), on land East of Kingston Bagpuize.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s 
planning history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of 
the agenda pack for the meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the 
application was brought to the committee due to its scale. The proposal 
was a hybrid application, seeking outline permission for up to 660 
houses with associated infrastructure, a care facility with up to 70 
bedrooms, a local centre with a mixture of uses, primary school, informal 
open space, and sought full planning permission for a link road and two 
roundabouts.  

 
The planning officer informed members of several updates to the report 
since publication; a correction to paragraph 5.39 of the report in which it 
was the landowner who purchased the land not the applicant, and to 
confirm the highways contribution figures with £1,574,768 sought for the 
Frilford junction improvement, and improvements delivered prior to 200 
occupations, and £121,682 for the Marcham interchange improvement, 
delivered prior to 299 occupations. Oxfordshire County Council officers 
confirmed they would contact the applicant prior to 50 occupations as to 
whether they required the applicant to direct deliver the works or to make 
these contributions to the council for wider schemes. In addition, an 

Page 40



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

update was given from Thames Water that the Kingston Bagpuize 
sewage treatment work improvement project was on schedule to deliver 
as planned with March 2024 for storm tank capacity and December 2024 
for permit compliance. Therefore, the planning officer was satisfied that 
the Environment Agency’s objection was overcome, and the application 
would be acceptable.  

 
The planning officer highlighted to the committee that the site was 
allocated in the local plan for around 600 houses and was to the east of 
Kingston Bagpuize, but within the parish of Fyfield and Tubney. On 
housing delivery, the planning officer highlighted that the site was 
expected to deliver 165 dwellings towards the council’s 6.29 years 
deliverable supply outlined in the council’s five-year housing land supply 
statement, from November 2022.  

 
The outline element of the application reserved all matters for future 
consideration but provided parameter plans for land use, green 
infrastructure, and heights, along with indicative plans and a design and 
access statement.   

 
The indicative access and movement plans showed the general 
arrangements of blocks on site, their arrangement, location of certain 
facilities and open spaces, and the indicative vehicle access points into 
the site from the link road. It was also noted that the heights of the 
proposed development were two to three stories. The planning officers 
also considered that the detail provided in the design and access 
statement was acceptable to inform a future reserved matters 
application.  

 
The planning officer then addressed some potential issues but concluded 
that, the principle of development was acceptable as the site was 
allocated in the local plan, the quantity of development was acceptable, 
urban design, density, amenity and opens spaces were satisfactory and 
also that the provision of affordable housing, space standards, housing 
mix, and type of housing could be secured to be local plan policy 
compliant. In addition, the planning officer considered the development 
would not cause unacceptable landscape or visual harm and were also 
satisfied that the application was acceptable on flood risk, drainage, 
heritage, and biodiversity grounds.  

 
On highways, the planning officer advised that access into the site was 
satisfactory and that offsite mitigation works at Marcham, Frilford, and in 
Kingston Bagpuize, along with bus service contributions could be 
secured, which meant that the application was acceptable.  

 

Page 41



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

On air quality, the planning officer informed members that no mitigation 
would be required, that air quality matters had been independently 
assessed, and that the application would be compliant with local plan 
policies. It was also noted that the application would be acceptable and 
policy compliant regarding climate change, but the planning officer 
proposed that an additional informative on water usage could be added if 
the committee was to grant permission.  

 
On health provision, the planning officer informed members that a 
request from the local primary care network for a contribution to 
expanding healthcare facilities had been received. In response to this, 
the applicant and National Health Service health board were exploring 
the option of providing health facility accommodation on site – potentially 
consulting rooms and a pharmacy in the local centre – and this could be 
secured through a legal agreement. Also, should on site provision not be 
possible, an offsite contribution would be required instead.  

 
In summary, as the site was a strategic allocation in the local plan, it 
would contribute to the sustainable growth in the district, and provided a 
contribution towards the provision of housing in the current five-year 
housing supply target. In addition, as there were no technical reasons for 
refusal, the planning officer recommended that the application be 
approved, subject to conditions.   

 
 

Councillor Dimitrios Hatzis spoke on behalf of Fyfield and Tubney Parish 
Council, objecting to the application. Councillor Virginia Grant spoke on 
behalf of Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor Parish Council, objecting to 
the application.  

 
Vicky Bilton, the applicant, Roger Smith, the agent for the application, 
and Sean McIntyre, Duncon Laxen, Craig Smith, James Bird, and Paul 
Birkenshaw spoke in support of the application.   

 
Councillor Eric Batts, a local ward councillor, spoke in support of the 
application.   

 
 

The planning officer was assisted in answering the committees’ 
questions on the application by several other technical officers from Vale 
of White Horse District Council and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC).  

 
The committee asked about the vehicular impact on air quality and the 
air quality assessment for the application. In response, the senior 
transport planner confirmed that OCC officers had examined this in detail 
and were content with quality of the air quality assessment and were 

Page 42



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

satisfied that all the inputs were robustly identified. The environmental 
health officer also confirmed that the council worked with OCC to 
examine the air quality assessment and was also satisfied that the 
application was acceptable in air quality terms.  

 
On public transport, members asked where the Section 106 money from 
the application would be directed to and to what specific bus routes it 
would help fund. The senior transport planner at OCC clarified that there 
were no specific plans to direct the money to specific public transport 
routes at that stage but that members should be confident that the funds 
would be used for Community Infrastructure Levy compliant ways. In 
addition, the OCC principal transport planner added that this funding 
would be of benefit to the public transport service as required in a new 
policy and that the contributions would be for bus services serving the 
application site. In addition, the principal transport planner confirmed the 
provision of new bus stops along the A415, with formal crossings, and to 
better utilise the stops at Oxford Road.  

 
Members then asked about OCC use of Section 106 money for 
infrastructure improvements and that, if the County Council decided to 
use the money for a wider scheme rather than the specific upgrades to 
Frilford and Marcham, would this be in place by the specific occupation 
trigger points. The OCC transport officer confirmed that they would look 
to implement either scheme in a similar time frame to allow for the 
allocated housing to come forward in timely manner.  

 
In addition, the planning officer confirmed that associated infrastructure 
to the application, such as the link road and roundabout were the full part 
of the application and as they were expected to be a key access for 
construction, that they would be delivered early on if the application was 
approved.  

 
A point of clarification about the mitigation of air quality in Marcham prior 
to occupation was also raised at this stage and the planning officer 
confirmed that this offsetting prior to occupation was no longer needed 
due to the air impact report s reviewed by the independent assessor.  

 
Members then asked about the risk of foul water pollution to Bagpuize 
Brook, the reason for the Environment Agency’s original objection, but 
were satisfied with the response from the planning officer that the 
Thames Water mitigation works would be sufficient and therefore that the 
Environment Agency’s concerns would be addressed satisfactorily by 
conditions. On improvements to the wider sewage network, members 
also noted that this was beyond the scope of the planning regime and 
was for Thames Water to provide the infrastructure to serve the 
development.  

Page 43



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

 
The committee then asked about the health facility in the local centre and 
were satisfied with the planning officers’ response that that a legal 
agreement would secure either the provision of those facilities or a 
contribution to a different project.  

 
Finally, members also asked about pre-planting of trees, but the planning 
officer confirmed that this could be encouraged but not conditioned.  

 
Overall, members were satisfied that the application complied with all the 
relevant local plan policies and were specifically happy with proposals 
around Electric Vehicle charging points, solar panels, an extra primary 
school and a care facility, and also around the provision of a space for 
healthcare in the local centre. Members discussed the potential of S106 
money not being invested directly in highways improvements to the 
Frilford junction but going into the wider scheme, and also about the 
proposed second cricket pitch needing a permitter fence or availability for 
other uses but did not believe these constituted reasons for refusal.  

 
Therefore, as members were satisfied with the proposed conditions, 
subject to the inclusion of an additional informative on water use, they 
agreed that the application should be approved.   

 
A motion, moved and seconded, to delegate authority to approve the 
application to the head of planning was carried on being put to the vote.   

 
 

RESOLVED: to authorise the head of planning to approve planning 
application P22/V0248/O, subject to the following:  

 
a) A S106 agreement being entered into to secure affordable housing, a 

primary school and land for expansion, onsite play, and sports 
provision, Frilford junction and Marcham interchange highway 
improvements and financial contributions towards traffic impact 
mitigation, public transport, travel plan monitoring, public art, street 
naming, waste bin provision, education and the management of public 
open spaces, sport and play areas; and  
 

b) the following planning conditions: 
 

Standard: 
1. Reserved matters to be approved 
2. Reserved matters time limit for submission 
3. Time limit for implementation 
4. Approved plans & document list 
5. Environmental Statement 

Page 44



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

6. Quantum of development 
7. No more than 660 dwellings and one 70 bed care home (class C2) 
to be constructed 

 
Details to accompany / support Reserved Matters: 
8. Reserved Matters to be no less than 50 dwellings 
9. Housing mix to be Strategic Market Housing Assessment compliant 
10. Construction Environmental Management Plan for Biodiversity 
11. Biodiversity Enhancement Plan 
12. Details of existing and proposed levels, slab and finished floor and 
roof levels 
13. Details of noise mitigation 

 
Pre-commencement: 
14. Phasing plan to be agreed 
15. Design brief for southern green edge 
16. Construction Environmental Management Plan 
17. Sustainable drainage 
18. Groundwater monitoring 
19. Foul drainage 
20. Contaminated land 
21. Community Employment Plan 
22. Archaeological Scheme of Investigation 
23. Archaeological Evaluation 
24. Tree Protection 
25. Landscaping 
26. Great Crested Newts District Licence 
27. Great Crested Newts Licence Mitigation 

 
Pre-occupation: 
28. Suds compliance report 
29. No occupation until off site foul water network upgrades to 
accommodate the development have been completed or a phased 
occupation plan agreed with the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with Thames Water. 
30. Residential Travel Plan 
31. Travel plans for commercial uses 
32. Final unit within a development parcel not to be occupied until all 
connecting roads and paths are complete 
33. Electric Vehicle charging points for all dwellings 
34. Management plan for play areas 
35. Contaminated land verification report 

 
Compliance: 
36. Construction hours 
 

Page 45



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

 
Informative: 
1. Planning Obligation 
2. Superfast broadband - 30 plus dwellings 
3. Water usage 

 

114 P22/V2285/O - Land adjacent to 45 Northcourt Road, Abingdon, 
OX14 1PJ  

 

The committee considered planning application P22/V2285/O for the 
outline application to consider the matters of access, layout and scale for 
a 2 bedroom chalet bungalow, 2-storey with an integral single garage (as 
amended through revised plans), on land adjacent to 45 Northcourt 
Road, Abingdon.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s 
planning history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of 
the agenda pack for the meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the 
application was called into the committee by a local ward member, 
Councillor Helen Pighills. The planning officer also informed members 
that there had been several updates to the report since its publication; at 
1.7 in the report there was doubt about the 2018 permission being extant 
as the bungalow element of the permission could not be carried out due 
to a measurement error, and in 5.7 of the report that the width of the site 
was 26 metres not 25 and the building would have a depth of 7.5 metres.   

  
The planning officer informed the committee that the proposal was an 
outline application for a single dwelling to determine if the principle of 
residential development on the site was acceptable. As it was an outline 
application, matters of scale, footprint, and height would be fixed if 
approved but the appearance of the building and landscaping would not 
be considered until the reserved matters stage. In addition, the planning 
offer noted that the site and No. 45 were accessed by a shared driveway, 
there was a protected tree located on the site’s northern boundary, and a 
grade II listed building to the south.  

 
The planning officer informed members that permission was granted to 
build a dwelling on the site in 2018 but a recent topographical survey 
was taken which showed that this bungalow could not be built due to 
inaccuracies in the measurements and for this reason, this new 
application had been submitted.  

 
The revised application reduced the width of the dwelling, increased the 
buffer between itself and No. 45 from 7 to 7.4 metres, would be the same 

Page 46



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

height as previously approved, and would retain a 5-metre parking 
space. Based on this, the planning officer believed that there would be a 
sufficient separation distance between the proposed dwelling and No. 45 
and that there would be appropriate garden space. The planning officer 
also informed members that that tree officer believed the protected tree 
to the north of the site would be protected and that there were no 
heritage concerns raised.  

 
Overall, as the planning officer believed that the principle of development 
for a two bed bungalow was approved in the 2018, and that sufficient 
detail was provided in the current application, they recommended that 
the application be approved, subject to conditions. 

 
 

Rosemary Buchan spoke objecting to the application.   
 

Councillor Helen Pighills, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the 
application.   

 
 

The committee had conducted a site visit prior to the discussion of the 
application. Members asked if there were legal implications around the 
application due to an existing legal agreement between the applicant and 
the occupants of No. 45 around alterations to any application on the site, 
and in response the planning officer informed members that any legal 
proceedings relating to that agreement would take place outside the 
planning process and that any matters arising from that would be 
addressed separately.   

 
Members then asked about the distance between the bay window of No. 
45 from the proposed house as some concerns were raised about 
neighbouring amenity. However, the planning officer confirmed that, as 
the site was originally measured incorrectly, the new application would 
not be further back in comparison to the bay window than the previous 
application and was therefore policy compliant regarding neighbouring 
amenity. Members also asked the planning officer if the proposed porch 
could be required to be open and not made of a solid material. However, 
as that would be included in a reserved matters application, the planning 
officer believed that such a requirement sat outside the matters 
considered at outline stage. A porch could be approved through reserved 
matters but further changes to it would be restricted by permitted 
development rights which would be secured through condition.  

 
Some members remained concerned about the potential impact the 
dwelling would have on the neighbours due to the position of the 
property in relation to the bay windows of No. 45. However, the majority 

Page 47



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

of the committee believed that the design was policy compliant and as 
the scale and massing of the dwelling was similar to the previously 
approved application in 2018, it was considered acceptable.  

 
A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was not carried 
on being put to the vote.   

 
Overall, as the committee considered that there was a small change 
between this application and what was previously approved, and that 
there were not sufficient grounds to refuse the application, it be approved 
subject to conditions, including specific reference to the restricting of 
permitted development rights for porch enlargement. 

 
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was carried 
on being put to the vote.   

  
 

RESOLVED: to approve planning application P22/V2285/O, subject to 
the following conditions:  

 
Standard: 
1. Work to commence within 3 years, and only once reserved matters 
have been submitted and approved in accordance with approved plans 

 
Pre-commencement: 
2. Tree protection (detailed) 
3. Surface water drainage scheme 
4. Construction method statement 

 
Pre-occupation: 
5. Implementation of parking and turning areas 

 
Compliance: 
6. Permitted development restriction – garage retained for parking 
7. Permitted development restriction – no roof alterations, extensions or 
outbuildings 

 

115 P22/V2825/S73 - 42 Hutchcomb Road, Oxford, OX2 9HL  
 

The committee considered planning application P22/V2825/S73 for the 
section 73 application to vary condition 2 (approved plans) on application 
P22/V0480/HH - alteration to proposed upper ridge height; change to 
roof finish for single storey rear extension; alteration to rooflight 
configuration over single storey extension and addition of solar 
photovoltaic panels to front and rear roof slopes. (Demolition of existing 
conservatory and raised terrace, proposed single storey rear extension, 

Page 48



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

raised terrace, loft conversion and dormer window), on land at 42 
Hutchcomb Road, Oxford.    

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s 
planning history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of 
the agenda pack for the meeting.   

 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the 
application was brought to the committee as the applicant was a member 
of the council, Councillor Emily Smith.  

 
The planning officer informed the committee that permission was 
approved in June 2022 for a single storey rear extension and loft 
conversion and that the proposal was a resubmission with minor 
changes. The key changes were a raising of the roof by 20cm, a change 
from zinc to tile finish on the rear extension roof, alterations to roof light 
configuration, and the addition of front and rear solar panels. The 
planning officer was satisfied that these alterations would not create any 
harm to the neighbours or significantly change the appearance of the 
previously approved scheme and therefore recommended that the 
application be approved. 

 
The committee asked the planning officer if he believed that this 
application would come to the committee if the applicant was not a 
member of the council and he confirmed that he did not believe that it 
would have. Overall, as members were satisfied with the officer’s report 
they agreed that the application should be approved, subject to 
conditions.   

 
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was carried 
on being put to the vote.   

 
 

RESOLVED: to approve planning application P22/V2825/S73, subject to 
the following conditions:  

 
Standard Conditions: 
1. Commencement within three years 
2. Approved plans list 

 
Compliance Conditions: 
3. Parking spaces to be implemented in accordance with plans 
4. Materials in accordance with application details 

 
 
The meeting closed at 9.27 pm 

Page 49



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P22/V2546/S73 
 SITE Land South of Halls Close Drayton 
 PARISH DRAYTON 
 PROPOSAL Variation of conditions 2 (Approved Plans) on 

planning application P17/V1225/RM and 
removal of condition 14 (Age Restriction) on 
planning application P15/V2077/O. (As 
amended by plans and additional 
documentation received 16 December 2022, 10 
January 2023, 19 January 2023, 27 January 
2023 and 31 January 2023). (Description 
corrected and clarified in agreement with agent 
on 16 February 2023).  
(Erection of 22 dwellings together with 
replacement garage for 10 Halls Close). 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Andy Cooke 
 APPLICANT Hill Residential Limited 
 OFFICER Sally Appleyard 

 

 

 RECOMMENDATION 
 Planning permission is granted, subject to the following conditions: 
  

Standard 

1. Time limit – variation of condition 
2. Approved Plans 

 
Pre-commencement 

3. Vehicular access and visibility to be implemented as approved 
4. External lighting details to be submitted prior to commencement of 

development above slab level  
5. Wall material details to be submitted prior to commencement of 

development above slab level  
 
Pre-occupation 

6. Implementation of approved surface water drainage scheme 
7. Implementation of approved foul water drainage scheme  
8. Implementation of approved boundary details 
9. Implementation of approved landscape scheme 

 
Compliance 

10. Implementation of approved tree protection measures 
11. Implementation of approved Construction Traffic Management Plan 
12. Implementation of approved Travel Plan 
13. Implementation of ecological scheme of mitigation, compensation 

and enhancement 
14. Materials in accordance with submitted details 

 
 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V2546/S73


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application has been referred to planning committee as Drayton Parish 

Council object.  
 

1.2 The application site is a paddock at the rear of 10 Halls Close in Drayton. 
Outline planning permission (ref P15/V2077/O) was granted on appeal in 
November 2016 for up to 28 dwellings, and a reserved matters application 
(P17/V1225/RM) was approved in April 2018 for 22 dwellings. The approved 
development consists of 11 age restricted units, 3 market units and 8 
affordable units. All pre-commencement conditions were discharged prior to 
the commencement of development on site on 8 October 2018.  
 

1.3 This application seeks to vary condition 2 (approved plans) of planning 
permission P17/V1225/RM. The changes proposed include the following: 

 Minor realignment of road and pavement at site entrance 

 Plots 20-22 and the private drive moved approximately 1.5 metres to the 
south to increase amenity space 

 Minor landscape adjustments to reflect changes to the layout 

 Elevation changes to plot 1 to include alterations and reduction of 
glazing on front elevation, increased width of front door and removal of 
side glazed panel, and detailing on west side elevation to be removed 

 Elevation changes to plot 2 to include increased width of front door and 
removal of side glazed panel, and removal of glazed area over French 
door on east elevation and its replacement with brick. 

 
1.4 This application also seeks to remove condition 14 of the outline consent (ref 

P15/V2077/O). This will result in the 11 age restricted units being open market 
units. The proposed development would then consist of a total of 14 market 
units and 8 affordable units.  
 

1.5 Throughout the course of this application, plans approved under the reserved 
matters consent were re-submitted and updated to reflect the minor changes to 
the layout.  
  

1.6 The latest site layout plans and elevations are attached at Appendix 1. All 
other plans and technical documents are available to view online on the 
council’s website at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.   

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 A summary of the latest responses received from consultees and third parties 

to the application is below. Full responses received can be viewed online at 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

Drayton Parish Council Second Consultation (February 2023) 
Object 

- Concerns regarding pedestrian and road 
safety 

- No longer object to the removal of 
condition 14 
 

Page 51

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

First Consultation (November 2022) 
Object 

- It is stated that the development has 
started. The Parish Council is aware that 
some minor trenching has occurred on site 
and that a garage may have been moved. 
We would seek clarification that this 
constitutes starting the development. 

- The proposed removal of Condition 14 is 
said to be in line with the inspectors report 
when the original application was allowed 
on appeal. The Parish Council would seek 
confirmation of this as the condition was a 
key element of the original application. In 
addition to this, a change in occupancy will 
increase traffic in a road with insufficient 
footway provision, and will be a road safety 
hazard. 

- We look for a reasonable Traffic Plan. 
- The prospect of further development 

makes inadequate footway provision.  
- The amendments to the layout seem minor 

but extends the current site boundary 
slightly. 
 

Residents Second Consultation (February 2023) 
Two further letters of representation have been 
received, raising the following concerns: 

- Loss of age restricted homes is not 
acceptable 

- The replacement of glazing above the east-
facing French window on plot 2 with a brick 
wall is undesirable.  
 

First Consultation (November 2022) 
Eight letters of representation were received 
raising the following concerns:  

- Lack of balancing pond on the site 
- Risk of flooding 
- Additional traffic generated by 22 houses 

would impact highway safety 
- Access insufficient 
- Lack of pavement in Halls Close 
- The proposal does not comply with the 

Drayton Neighbourhood Plan 
- Loss of age restricted homes is not 

acceptable 
- Concerns of future development to the 

south of the site 
 

Page 52



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

Oxfordshire County 
Council – Transport 

Second Consultation (February 2023) 
No objection 
 
First Consultation (November 2022) 
No objection 
 

Oxfordshire County 
Council – LLFA 

Second Consultation (February 2023) 
No comments 
 
First Consultation (November 2022) 
No comments 
 

Oxfordshire County 
Council – Education 

Second Consultation (February 2023) 
No response 
 
First Consultation (November 2022) 
No objection. This site is already subject to a 
signed S106 agreement. The matrix contained 
within that agreement will be applied to any 
change in dwelling mix or dwelling use. 
 

Oxfordshire County 
Council – Archaeology  

Second Consultation (February 2023) 
No further comments 
 
First Consultation (November 2022) 
No objection. A programme of archaeological 
recording has been undertaken and completed in 
line with an agreed written scheme of 
investigation (WSI). No further investigation is 
required. The post excavation analysis is ongoing, 
and a final report will be submitted. As such there 
are no archaeological constraints to this 
application. 
 

 

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P18/V2931/FUL - Refused (02/05/2019) - Appeal allowed (30/09/2019) 

Removal of condition 14 (age restricted units) - on application ref. P15/V2077/O  
 
P18/V2086/DIS - Approved (26/10/2018) 
Discharge of condition 6 - foul water drainage strategy on application ref. 
P15/V2077/O  
 
P18/V1683/DIS - Approved (03/09/2018) 
Discharge of condition 2 - Contamination Evaluation Report and 4 - Materials 
on application ref P17/V1225/RM. 
 
P18/V1195/DIS - Approved (24/08/2018) 

Page 53

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2931/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2086/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1683/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1195/DIS


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

Discharge of conditions 5 - sustainable surface water drainage scheme, 8 - 
travel plan, 9 - archaeological investigation and 12 - details of vehicular access 
to the site and visibility splays on application ref. P15/V2077/O  
 
P18/V1753/DIS - Approved (01/08/2018) 
Discharge of condition 3 - Biodiversity Offsetting on application ref 
P17/V1225/RM. 
 
P18/V1343/DIS - Approved (18/07/2018) 
Discharge of condition 7 - Construction Traffic Management Plan and 10 - 
Archaeology Evaluation Report. On application P15/V2077/O. 
 
P17/V1225/RM - Approved (19/04/2018) 
Erection of 22 dwellings together with replacement garage for 10 Halls Close. 
As amended by plans and information received 19 July 2017; as amended by 
plans received 8 February 2018. 
 
P16/V0675/O - Withdrawn (11/01/2017) 
Outline application on Land to the Rear of 10 Halls Close, Drayton to provide 
up to 28 no. dwellings with all matters reserved except access. 
 
P15/V2077/O - Refused (27/01/2016) - Appeal allowed (02/11/2016) 
Outline application on Land to the Rear of 10 Halls Close, Drayton to provide 
up to 28 no. dwellings with all matters reserved except access (As amended by 
Drawing No: 14.070.SK13 (Site Layout) accompanying agent's letter dated 2 
November 2015) 
 

3.2 Pre-application History 
P22/V1647/PEJ - Advice provided (18/08/2022) 
The site has an existing and implemented planning permission for 22 dwellings 
with a condition which sets out an age restriction on occupation (LPA Ref 
P17/V1225/RM). 
 
The proposal is to submit a section73 planning application which will seek to 
remove the age restriction. 
 
The proposal would also substitute the floorplans and elevations of the 
proposed dwellings, the details of which are also the subject of a planning 
condition.  
 
P20/V0460/PEJ - Advice provided (13/11/2020) 
Pre-application discussions in relation to seeking an improved scheme of 
amended house types, layout and materials on an outline and reserved matters 
approval. 
 

3.3 Screening Opinion requests 
None 

 
 
 

Page 54

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1753/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1343/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V1225/RM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V0675/O
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V2077/O
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V1647/PEJ
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/V0460/PEJ


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 This proposal does not exceed 150 dwellings, the site area is under 5ha and is 

not within a ‘sensitive area’ as defined by the EIA regulations. Consequently the 
proposal is beneath the thresholds set in Schedule 2 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 as amended 
and this proposal is not EIA development and there is no requirement under the 
Regulations to provide a screening opinion. 

 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 

 The principle of development 

 Principle of varying conditions 

 Design & layout 

 Age restricted units 

 Technical matters 

 Financial contributions 

 Planning conditions 
 

5.2 The principle of development 
Outline planning permission (ref P15/V2077/O) was granted on appeal in 
November 2016 for up to 28 dwellings, and a reserved matters application 
(P17/V1225/RM) was approved in April 2018 for 22 dwellings. The approved 
development  has been lawfully commenced.  The principle of development is 
therefore established. 
 

5.3 Principle of Varying Conditions 
When planning permission is granted, development must take place in 
accordance with the permission and conditions attached to it, and with any 
associated legal agreements. New issues may arise after planning permission 
has been granted, which require modification of the approved proposals, and 
under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 an application 
can be made to vary or remove conditions associated with a planning 
permission.  One of the uses of a section 73 application is to seek a minor 
material amendment, where there is a relevant condition that can be varied. 
Under section 73a of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 an application 
can be made for development without complying with a condition subject to 
which planning permission was granted. 
 

 5.4 The relevant planning considerations for this application are only the matters for 
which the modification is sought. All the other matters were dealt with as part of 
the approved application and are not for re-consideration here. 
 

5.5 Design and Layout 
Core Policy 37 of the LPP1 requires new development to be of a high-quality 
design that is visually attractive and the scale, height, massing and details are 
appropriate for the site and surrounding area. Core Policy 38 of the LPP1 sets 
out the requirement for Masterplans and Design and Access Statements to 
accompany strategic and major development proposals. Policy P-LF3 of the 

Page 55



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

Drayton Neighbourhood Plan (DNP) requires new development to be designed 
to a high standard which responds to the distinctive character of Drayton and 
reflects the guidelines and principles as set out within the Drayton Design 
Guide (see Annex D of the DNP). The Council’s Joint Design Guide provides 
further guidance on how to achieve high quality, well-designed residential 
developments. 
 

5.6 The proposed changes to the design and layout of the scheme are as follows: 

 Minor realignment of road and pavement at site entrance 

 Plots 20-22 and the private drive moved approximately 1.5 metres to the 
south to increase amenity space 

 Minor landscape adjustments to reflect changes to the layout 

 Elevation changes to plot 1 to include alterations and reduction of 
glazing on front elevation, increased width of front door and removal of 
side glazed panel, and detailing on west side elevation to be removed 

 Elevation changes to plot 2 to include increased width of front door and 
removal of side glazed panel, and removal of glazed area over French 
door on east elevation and its replacement with brick. 

 
5.7 These amendments to the scheme are considered minor changes that would 

not significantly harm the character of the area or harm the amenities of 
neighbours. Overall,  the proposed changes are considered acceptable and do 
not significantly alter the scheme from the one previously approved. 
 

5.8 Details of materials were submitted and approved under application reference 
P18/V1683/DIS. A revised materials plan has however been submitted with this 
application which seeks to substitute the clay plain tile and natural slate with a 
concrete tile and fibre cement slate. These alternative roofing materials give a 
similar appearance to that of traditional clay tiles and natural slate and are 
similar to the tiles used on the dwellings recently constructed to the west of the 
site and are considered to be acceptable in design terms. 
 

5.9 The proposal also seeks to substitute the orange multi facing brick with a lightly 
textured brick with light orange, red, grey and cream shades blended. This is 
not considered to be reflective of the area where orange and red bricks 
predominantly characterise this part of the village. Whilst these alternative 
bricks are not considered to be acceptable, it is considered further brick 
samples can be dealt with by a condition.  
 

5.10 To conclude design and layout matters,  the proposed changes to the design 
and layout are considered to be acceptable and comply with policy CP37 of the 
adopted Local Plan 2031 part 1, Policy P-LF3 of the Drayton Neighbourhood 
Plan, and the council’s Joint Design Guide.  
 

5.11 Highway safety 
Core Policies 35 and 37 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 part 1 requires 
development to be well connected to provide safe and convenient ease of 
movement by all users, and that adequate car parking is provided in 
accordance with Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) standards on all new 
developments.  

Page 56



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

 
5.12 It is acknowledged that the parish council have raised concerns regarding 

highway safety. OCC as Highway Authority has been consulted and have 
reviewed the proposed changes to the road layout and raise no objection. 
Whilst minor comments have been made regarding carriageway and footpath 
widths, bin collection points and visibility, these are aspects that relate to 
adoption should the developer wish to get roads adopted. OCC raise no safety 
concerns with the layout proposed, which is very similar to that previously 
approved, together with visibility and bin collection points previously agreed as 
part of the original permission.  
 

5.13 To conclude, the Highway Authority has raised no objection to the minor re-
alignment of the road and pavement and these changes are not considered to 
detrimentally impact highway safety to warrant refusal of the application. 
 

5.14 Age restricted units 
The application seeks to remove condition 14 (age restricted units) of the 
outline consent. The condition reads as follows:  
 
“The 11 dwellings hereby permitted that form part of the retirement element of 
the scheme shall only be occupied by persons: 

a) Aged 60 or over; 
b) Living as part of a single household with such a person or persons; 
c) Who were living as part of a single household with such a person or 

persons at the property who have since died.” 
 

5.15 The removal of condition 14 was previously considered under planning 
application reference P18/V2931/FUL. Following refusal of the application by 
the Planning Committee in May 2019, a subsequent appeal was allowed, with 
the inspector stating that “the development provides a range and mix of house 
types that would be appropriate for older people, including affordable housing” 
and the site is “well located in terms of facilities and services”. The inspector 
also noted that “the removal of the condition would not change the range and 
mix of house types, or their layout, which the Council acknowledges is in 
accordance with the Oxfordshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2014, 
and it would not prevent older people from occupying the houses”. Given these 
factors, the inspector concluded that “there is no evidence of the necessity of 
the condition no 14, and that the continue to apply it would be unreasonable”. 
 

5.16 Whilst planning permission P18/V2931/FUL was never implemented, it clearly 
establishes the position in relation to the removal of the age restriction condition 
on this site. There are no changes proposed to the 11 units (plots 1-11) in 
terms of their size and layout, other than some minor elevational changes to 
plots 1 and 2. The housing mix remains the same as previously approved.  
 

5.17 The highways authority have also raised no objections to the removal of the 
age restricted units, and are of the view that the this will have marginal impact 
on trip generation. In considering the appeal, the inspector also noted that there 
was “no substantive evidence that the removal of the condition would make the 

Page 57



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

site access or local roads unsafe”. As such, it is not considered that the 
proposal would cause harm to highway safety.  
 

5.18 The site is already subject to a signed S106 agreement. The matrix contained 
within the agreement will be applied to any change in dwelling mix or dwelling 
use to calculate the primary education contribution. The 11 age restricted units 
will now considered as market dwellings and will therefore be included within 
the matrix. As such, the additional contributions required as a result of the 
removal of the 11 age restricted units is already accounted for in the signed 
S106.  
 

5.19 Given these factors, officers are of the view that this proposal is similar to the 
application previously considered at appeal. Condition 14 is no longer 
considered to be reasonable or necessary and therefore does not meet the six 
tests relevant to imposing conditions as set out in paragraph 56 of the NPPF. 
The removal of condition 14 is therefore considered acceptable and a refusal 
seeking its retention would be unreasonable.  
 

5.20 Technical matters 
Matters of traffic generation, flood risk and drainage, heritage assets, 
landscape impact and trees, affordable housing, archaeology and ecology, 
were previously assessed in detail on the outline application and were 
considered acceptable and since then matters such as detailed drainage 
schemes, archaeological investigations, contamination and biodiversity off 
setting have been approved through the discharge of conditions.  Officers 
consider the changes proposed in this application do not result in any material 
change to these matters. There is also no material change in policy since the 
adoption of the Local Plan Part 2.  
 

5.21 Financial contributions 
This site is already subject to a signed S106 agreement which allows for S73 
applications. In terms of the education contribution, the matrix contained within 
the S106 agreement will be applied to any change in dwelling mix or dwelling 
use and as such will now include the 11 previously age restricted units.  As 
such, a new S106 agreement is not required. 
 

5.22 Since the approval of the outline consent, the Council has adopted a 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging schedule. The proposed 
changes do not create additional floor space that would be CIL liable. 
 

5.23 Planning conditions 
All pre-commencement planning conditions on the outline consent and 
reserved matters consent have been discharged and will therefore be reworded 
to reflect this. Conditions that remain relevant will be transferred over to a new 
permission, should permission be granted. 

 
6.0 CONCLUSION 
6.1 This application has been determined against the development plan, unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise.  In considering the application, due 
regard has been given to the representations received from statutory and other 

Page 58



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

consultees. These have been taken in to account in assessing the overall 
scheme.  
 

6.2 As confirmed at appeal, condition 14 of outline consent P15/V2077/O is no 
longer considered to be reasonable or necessary, and will not result in changes 
to the range and mix of house types, and therefore the removal of this condition 
is acceptable.   
 

6.3 The proposed changes to the design and layout of the scheme approved under 
application reference P17/V1225/RM will not harm the visual amenity of the 
area, the amenities of neighbouring residents or impact on highway safety. 
 

6.4 Overall, the proposed changes comply with relevant development plan policies 
and the provisions of the NPPF and amount to sustainable development. 

 
 The following planning policies, guidance and legislation have been taken into 

account: 
 

 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 1 policies: 
CP1  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
CP3  -  Settlement Hierarchy 
CP4  -  Meeting our housing needs 
CP5  -  Housing supply ring-fence 
CP7  -  Providing supporting infrastructure and services 
CP8  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon & Oxford Fringe Sub-Area 
CP22  -  Housing Mix 
CP23  -  Housing Density 
CP24  -  Affordable Housing 
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness 
CP38  -  Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites 
CP39  -  The Historic Environment 
CP40  -  Sustainable Design and Construction 
CP42  -  Flood Risk 
CP43  -  Natural Resources 
CP44  -  Landscape 
CP45  -  Green Infrastructure 
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity 
CP47 - Delivery and Contingency 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 2 policies: 
DP2  -  Space Standards 
DP8  -  Community Services and Facilities 
DP16  -  Access 
DP20  -  Public Art 
DP21  -  External Lighting 
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity 
DP24  -  Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments 
DP25  -  Noise Pollution 

Page 59



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

DP26  -  Air Quality 
DP27  -  Land Affected by Contamination 
DP28  -  Waste Collection and Recycling 
DP31  -  Protection of Public Rights of Way, National Trails and Open Access 
Areas 
DP33  -  Open space 
DP34  -  Leisure and Sports Facilities 
DP36  -  Heritage Assets 
DP39  -  Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments 
 

 Drayton Neighbourhood Plan 
P-LF3 – Building design guidance 
P-LF4 – Conservation Area 
P-LF5 – The historic environment 
P-LF6 – Additional greenery - new developments 
P-WP1 – Connected development 
P-T1 – Travel plans 
P-S1 – Biodiversity 
P-H2 – Affordable housing 
P-H3 – Contributions 
P-H4 – External facilities 
 

 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)  

 Joint Design Guide  

 Developer Contributions SPD 
 

 Other material documents/considerations 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
 

 Other Relevant Legislation  
Due regard has been had to the following legislation;  

 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990  

 Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation  

 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998  

 Obligations under Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010  

 Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998  

 Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006  

 The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010  

 Localism Act (including New Homes Bonus)  

 Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000  

 Oxfordshire Local Transport Plan  
 

Case officer: Sally Appleyard 
Email: planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
Tel: 01235 422600 
 

Page 60

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Scale Bar Metres

0 10

Rev. No. Date. Amendment. Initial.

Only figured dimensions to be worked to. Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.
All dimensions to be checked on site or in the workshop before work commences.
THIS DRAWING IS A COPYRIGHT

Drawn By:

CAD Ref:

Scale:

Drawing:

Project:

Checked By:

Client:

Drawing No:

Date:

Rev. No:

Hill Residential Limited
The Courtyard, Abbey Barns,
Ickleton, CB10 1SX

Land south of Halls Close
Drayton, Abington, Oxfordshire

Existing Site Layout
Section 73

1:300@A1 October 2022

CK CC 143-PA-1-000 A

2022-10-12-Site Layout

Appendix 1

P
age 61

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Ppg

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Herrington

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
4



P
age 62



Client:

Project:

Drawing:

Scale:

Drawn By:

Date:

Drawing No:

Checked By: Revision:

THIS DRAWING IS A COPYRIGHT
All dimensions to be checked on site or in the workshop before work commences.
Only figured dimensions to be worked to. Any discrepancies to be reported to the 
Architect.

@A1

Hill Residential Limited 
The Courtyard, Abbey Barns, 
Ickleton, CB10 1SX

1 : 50

ACK JT

143-PA-1-100

Plot 1

October 2022

Land south of Halls Close,
Drayton, Abington,
Oxfordshire

Elevations

0

SCALE 1:

2.521.510.50.5

m50

Schedule of Revisions

Rev: Description: Date: Initial:

A

1 : 50

Front Elevation

1 : 50

Side Elevation - Left

1 : 50

Side Elevation - Right

1 : 50

Rear Elevation

Plot 1

P
age 63



Client:

Project:

Drawing:

Scale:

Drawn By:

Date:

Drawing No:

Checked By: Revision:

THIS DRAWING IS A COPYRIGHT
All dimensions to be checked on site or in the workshop before work commences.
Only figured dimensions to be worked to. Any discrepancies to be reported to the 
Architect.

@A1

Hill Residential Limited 
The Courtyard, Abbey Barns, 
Ickleton, CB10 1SX

1 : 50

ACK JT

143-PA-1-101

Plot 2

October 2022

Land south of Halls Close,
Drayton, Abington,
Oxfordshire

Elevations

Schedule of Revisions

Rev: Description: Date: Initial:

A

1 : 50

Front Elevation

1 : 50

Side Elevation - Left

1 : 50

Side Elevation - Right

1 : 50

Rear Elevation

0

SCALE 1:

543211

m100

Plot 2

P
age 64



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P22/V2978/S73 
 SITE Dragon Hill Uffington Faringdon, SN7 7RE 
 PARISH UFFINGTON 
 PROPOSAL Variation of condition 2 (approved Plans) of 

application P22/V1141/FUL and removal of 
condition 7 
 
Proposed erection of 2no 4 bed detached (self-
build) dwellings. 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Nathan Boyd 
 APPLICANT Mr Matthew Rosier 
 OFFICER Nathaniel Bamsey 
 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 Officers recommend that planning permission is granted subject to the 

following conditions: 
 
Standard 

 1.  Approved plans 
 
Compliance (during construction) 
2.  Tree Protection as Approved    
3.  Wildlife Protection (mitigation as approved)    
 
Prior to creation of new access 
4.  Revised Tree Protection Measures    
 
Prior to first use 
5.  Watercourse Enhancement    
6.  Implementation of Biodiversity Enhancement Strategy    
7.  Development in Accordance with Flooding Mitigation    
8.  Access, Parking and Turning in Accordance with Plan.    
9.  Closure of Existing Access    
10. Landscaping Scheme (Submission)    
11. Landscaping Scheme (Implement)  
12. Boundary Details    
13. Drainage as Approved (Surface and Foul) 
  
Compliance  
14. Materials in Accordance with Application   
15. PD Restriction in Flood Risk Area    
 
Informatives 
16 . Works within the Highway Informative    
17 . CIL- Planning permission or reserved matters approval (Vale)   
18 . List of Relevant Uffington and Baulking Neighbourhood Plan Policies 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V2978/S73


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application is referred to committee following a call-in by the local 

member, Councillor Nathan Boyd. 
 

1.2 The application site is a field approximately 0.2ha in area located south west of 
the existing bungalow known as Dragon Hill in the south western edge of the 
village of Uffington. The site is currently accessed from the south, the 
Woolstone Road, by a track which serves Dragon Hill. The nearest existing 
neighbouring properties are Bridge Cottage to the west, the existing dwelling at 
Dragon Hill to the north and the new dwelling constructed to the east known as 
Border Meadows. A stream runs along the western border of the site and there 
is currently hedging along the border with the highway to the south.  
 

1.3 In 2019 outline planning permission for two dwellings was allowed on appeal 
due to the site being considered by the inspector to be inside the limits of 
Uffington (P18/V003/O). In 2022 full planning permission was granted for two 
detached houses (P22/V1141/FUL).  This current application is made under 
Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, and it seeks to make 
minor material amendments to the 2022 permission. The amendments 
proposed are: 
 

 The creation of a separate new vehicular access from the road to serve 
the approved Plot 2 (the permitted scheme had one shared new access 
for both dwellings) 

 The retention of the existing eastern access for the use of the 
neighbouring dwelling Boarder Meadows (this existing access was due 
to be closed in the permitted scheme under condition 7) 

 The insertion of three rooflights into the west roof of the approved 
detached garage of Plot 1.  

 
A site location plan is provided below, and the plans are attached at Appendix 
1. 

Page 66



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

 
 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Full versions of the representations can be found on the planning application 

pages on the council’s website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk  
 

Uffington Parish 
Council 
 

Objection on the following grounds: 

 The changes are fundamental and should not be 
made via a Section 73 application. A fresh 
application should be made. 

 The new access will not be safe 

 The eastern access should be used to serve both 
new dwellings and the other accesses should be 
stopped up 

 Loss of hedgerow will be harmful to the street 
scene of Woolstone Road 

 Additional accesses will erode rural character 
 

Neighbours  
 

Two objections have been submitted on the following 
grounds: 

 The new access will be unsafe due to poor 
visibility and the speed of vehicles 

 The loss of hedgerow will harm the character and 
appearance of the area 

 

One neighbour has written with observations 

 

Conservation No heritage objection 

Page 67

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

officer 
 

 

Highways 
Liaison Officer 
 

No objection, subject to condition  
 

Forestry officer 
 

No arboricultural objection 
 

 

 
3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P22/V2948/NM - Approved (01/02/2023) 

Non material amendment to P22/V1141/FUL to add solar PV's to roof (as 
amended by plans received on 20 January 2023). 
 
P22/V1141/FUL - Approved (02/12/2022) 
Proposed erection of 2no 4 bed detached (self-build) dwellings.(amended Plans 
received 25 & 26 May 2022 & as amplified by additional information & amended 
plan received 13 June 2022, as amplified by additional information received 15 
June 2022 & 25 July 2022 & amended by plan received 04 August 2022). 
 
P21/V0467/FUL - Approved (07/07/2021) 
Proposed erection of a self build dwelling with new access (Amended plans 
received 25th May 2021) 
 
P20/V2007/DIS - Other Outcome (03/09/2020) 
Discharge of conditions 1 - appearance, landscaping, layout and scale, 5 - 
visibility splays, 6 - parking and 7 - turning space for motor vehicles on 
application ref. P18/V0003/O (Appeal Ref: APP/V3120/W/18/3212955)  
 
P18/V0003/O - Refused (11/05/2018) - Appeal allowed (14/06/2019) 
Erection of 2 self build dwellings 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 The proposed development is not Schedule 1 or 2 development as defined by 

the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2017, so an Environmental Impact Assessment is not required.  

 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The main material planning considerations are the following: 

 Principle of the development 

 Access and parking 

 Design and character 

 Landscape  

 Heritage 

 Residential amenity 

 Ecology  

 Flood risk/drainage 
 

5.2 Principle of the development  
The principle of the development has been agreed due to the extant permission 
for the two houses.  

Page 68

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V2948/NM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V1141/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V0467/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/V2007/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V0003/O


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

 
5.3 Access and parking 

Policies CP33, CP35, and CP37 of LPP1 and policy DP16 of LPP2 require 
development to provide safe and convenient access, sufficient car and cycle 
parking in line with Oxfordshire County Council standards and adequate 
provision for loading, unloading, circulation, servicing and vehicle turning. 
Policy S3A of the Neighbourhood Plan requires all new developments to 
provide appropriate off-road car parking that is integrated into the landscape, 
and which complies with OCC’s Residential Road Design Guide. 
 

5.4 The application originally proposed to retain the existing access in the eastern 
corner of the site, which was due to be closed in the permitted scheme, for use 
by Plot 2. This was proposed because the legal rights to use this access by the 
neighbour at Boarder Meadows meant it could not be closed as originally 
intended. However, the Highways Officer did not support the use of this access 
by an additional dwelling as the required vision splays could not be secured. 
Amended plans were submitted which propose a new additional access for Plot 
2, more central to the site, and the retention of the eastern access for the use of 
third parties who have lawful rights to use it only. The approved new western 
access would be used by Plot 1 only. 
 

5.5  Objectors consider this new access for Plot 2 will be dangerous. However, the 
Highways Officer is satisfied that it would be safe as vision splays have been 
demonstrated which exceed the minimum distances recommended by Manual 
for Streets. He is also content with the eastern access being retained for 
occasional access by the neighbour, Border Meadows, for maintenance of their 
boundary given its infrequent use. A revised wording of condition 7 is 
recommended which makes clear that the existing eastern access shall be 
used only by Border Meadows and that no vehicular access shall be created 
from it to Plot 2.  
 

5.6 The introduction of incidental accommodation within the roof of the detached 
garage of Plot 1 will not increase the parking requirement and this will continue 
to accord with standards. 
 

5.7  Subject to the recommended conditions, and in the absence of an objection 
from the Highways Officer, it is considered that the application accords with 
policies CP33, CP35, CP37, DP16 and S3A.  
 

5.8 Design and character 
Policy CP37 of LPP1 requires development to be of high quality, visually 
attractive design that responds positively to the site and its surroundings with 
appropriate scale, height, details and materials.  
 

5.9 Policy D1 of the Neighbourhood Plan requires all new development to be of a 
high-quality design which takes account of its location and reflects its particular 
local identity, taking account of the Vale’s Design Guide. 
 

5.10 Policy D2 of the Neighbourhood Plan supports new buildings or extensions 
where they are proportionate to their plot sizes, where they do not dominate 

Page 69



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

neighbouring buildings and where they do not close important gaps or 
otherwise impede public local views, in accordance with the Joint Design 
Guide.  
 

5.11 Policy D3 of the Neighbourhood Plan supports boundary treatments which are 
wildlife friendly, reflective of the traditional, rural context of the villages and 
defined by walls, post-and-rail fencing or hedges consisting of native species at 
a height which preserves the open views within the villages.  
 

5.12 The proposed change to the design of the approved scheme, the introduction of 
three rooflights into the detached garage serving Plot 1, will result in little 
change to the overall scheme, and no harm to the appearance of the building, It 
will continue to have an ancillary appearance. No other changes are proposed 
to the appearance of the dwellings and their design, siting and scale are as 
approved. Therefore, officers consider the proposal continues to accord with 
the requirements of policies CP37, D1 and D2.   
 

5.13 The new access in the centre of the site will result in the loss of 4.2m of the 
existing hedge along the border with the highway. This means there will be 
some loss of the existing enclosure and the break in the hedge will mean the 
new houses are likely to be more visible from the road. However, officers 
consider the amount of loss of hedge is relatively small, and the retention of the 
remaining hedge and the degree to which the new houses will be set back into 
the site should prevent the change being harmful to visual amenity.   
 

5.14 The previous application was supported by a plan showing the proposed 
boundary treatments. As these cannot be implemented as shown a condition is 
recommended requiring revised details of the boundary treatments to be 
submitted to ensure they accord with policy D3 of the Neighbourhood Plan.  
 

5.15 Landscape 
The impact of development on the landscape is assessed against policy CP44 
of LPP1. This policy requires key features of the landscape to be protected or 
enhanced including trees and hedgerows, and requires appropriate new 
landscaping. 
 

5.16 Policy L1 of the Neighbourhood Plan states that development proposals should 
take account of the landscape within their immediate locality and its ability to 
accommodate the development proposed.  
 

5.17 As the siting and design of the dwellings is unchanged other than the insertion 
of rooflights into the detached garage of Plot 1, the siting, design and scale of 
the dwellings themselves is considered to continue to accord with policy CP44 
and L1 in terms of its impact on the wider landscape. 
 

5.18 The council’s Forestry Officer has confirmed that there is no objection to the 
loss of the section of hedgerow to be removed subject to the remaining 
hedgerow being protected during construction of the dwellings. Conditions are 
recommended requiring the previously approved tree protection measures to 
be put in place during construction and for additional hedge protection 

Page 70



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

measures to be submitted and approved prior to the commencement of the 
works to create the new access. With these conditions attached the trees and 
remaining hedge will be protected during construction, in accordance with 
policies CP44 and L1. 
 

5.19 As the previously approved landscaping scheme for the site could not be 
implemented a condition is recommended requiring the submission and 
agreement of revised landscaping details to ensure compliance with policies 
CP44 and L1.  
 

5.20 Heritage  
Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 requires a local planning authority to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Section 72(1) states that 
special attention should be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing 
the character or appearance of a conservation area. 
 

5.21 Applications that affect conservation areas and their settings are controlled by 
policy DP37 of LPP2. Policy DP38 concerns applications that affect listed 
buildings and their settings. Policy DP37 requires development to preserve or 
enhance the character of the conservation area. Policy DP38 requires 
development to respect, preserve or enhance features within the setting that 
contribute to the special interest and significance of the building. Policy H4 of 
the Neighbourhood Plan states that housing development within the 
Conservation Areas, or within the setting of the Conservation Areas or listed 
buildings in the Plan area, will only be supported provided the proposed 
development conserves or enhances the special interest and significance of the 
Conservation Area or listed building. 
 

5.22 The site is within the setting of the Uffington Conservation Area. The site also 
offers views to the Grade I listed Church of St Mary. The siting and scale of the 
dwellings themselves are unchanged by the proposed amendments and, as 
such, there is no change in the impact on the views to the Church when 
compared to the approved scheme.  
 

5.23 The loss of a small section of the hedgerow will reduce the sense of enclosure 
to the approach to the Conservation Area but given only a small section is to be 
lost and the remaining hedge will be protected this is not considered to result in 
harm to the setting of the Conservation Area. The Conservation Officer has no 
objections to the application. 
 

5.24 Therefore, officers consider that the application accords with policies DP37, 
DP38 and H4, and with the duties placed on the council by the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  
 

5.25 Residential amenity 
The impact of development on neighbouring properties is controlled by policy 
DP23 of LPP2. This policy requires development proposals to demonstrate that 
they will not result in significant adverse effects on the amenity of neighbours 

Page 71



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

from impacts including loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight and dominance or 
visual intrusion. 
 

5.26 The introduction of an additional access will have no impact on neighbour 
amenity, so officers consider that the assessment of the impact of the 
amendments on the neighbour amenity rests on the impact of the rooflights in 
the west roof slope of the garage to Plot 1  
 

5.27 The rooflights will be approximately 24m from the boundary with Bridge 
Cottage, the western neighbour, and the cottage itself is approximately 18m 
further away from this boundary. This significant separation will prevent the 
rooflights causing harmful overlooking.  
 

5.28 As neighbours will not be harmed the amendment officers consider the 
application accords with policy DP23.  
 

5.29 Ecology  
Policy CP46 of LPP1 states that development that conserves, restores and 
enhances biodiversity will be permitted whilst net loss of biodiversity will be 
avoided. 
 

5.30 Development of land that contains or is adjacent to a watercourse must comply 
with policy DP30. This policy requires there to be no detrimental impacts on the 
function or setting of the watercourse or its biodiversity that cannot be 
appropriately mitigated. A minimum 10m buffer zone along both sides of the 
watercourse should be included to create a corridor of land and water 
favourable to the enhancement of biodiversity. 
 

5.31 Policy S1 of the Neighbourhood Plan supports the provision of new green 
infrastructure where they are stocked with native tree, plant and grass species. 
 

5.32 There is a watercourse on the west boundary of the site. The proposed 
amendments will not bring the houses any closer to the watercourse. The 
previous conditions requiring this watercourse to be protected during 
construction is recommended again together with the condition requiring the 
submission of a watercourse enhancement strategy to create a habitat suitable 
for water voles which have been recorded in the area. A further condition is 
recommended requiring the biodiversity enhancement measures outlined in the 
original application to be implemented. 
 

5.33 The conditions outlined above will ensure there is a net gain in biodiversity from 
the amended proposal. The conditions will also ensure there will be no impact 
on protected species. As such, officers consider that the application accords 
with policies CP46, DP30 and S1.  
 

5.34 Flood risk/drainage 
Policy CP42 of LPP1 seeks to minimise the risk and impact of flooding by 
directing new development to areas with the lowest probability of flooding, 
ensuring that all new development addresses the effective management of all 
sources of flood risk and does not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere. 

Page 72



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

 
5.35 Policy S2 of the Neighbourhood Plan requires developers to demonstrate that 

their proposals do not create or exacerbate risk of flooding or drainage overflow 
to existing properties in the Plan area, whether from fluvial, pluvial or ground 
water. 
 

5.36 The amendments do not change the position of the dwellings and as such the 
flood risk is unchanged.  
 

5.37 The previous approval was subject to several conditions in relation to drainage 
and flooding. The previously approved foul and surface water drainage details 
will be unaffected by the proposed amendment and as such a condition is 
recommended requiring these to be implemented as agreed. The previous 
conditions restricting permitted development rights for extensions and 
outbuildings in Flood Zone 3 and requiring the development to be implemented 
in accordance with mitigation measures of the flood risk assessment are also 
recommended.  
 

5.38 The recommended conditions will ensure that the development would not be at 
risk from flooding and that there would be no increase in flood risk elsewhere, 
in accordance with policies CP42 and S2.  
 

5.39 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
The development is CIL liable. A self-build exemption may be sought but this 
must be agreed prior to commencement. 
 

5.40 Pre-commencement conditions 
The development has commenced under the previous planning permission so 
no pre-commencement conditions can be recommended. 
 

6.0 CONCLUSION 
6.1 The principle of the development is given by the existing planning permission 

and officers consider that, subject to the recommended conditions, the 
proposed amendments are unharmful. Therefore, it is concluded that the 
application accords with the development plan, the NPPF and the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1900 (as amended) and as such 
permission should be granted.  

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 

 
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1): 

CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy 
CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs 
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness 
CP39  -  The Historic Environment 
CP40  -  Sustainable Design and Construction 
CP42  -  Flood Risk 

Page 73



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 08 March 2023 

CP43  -  Natural Resources 
CP44  -  Landscape 
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 (LPP2): 
DP01  -  Self and Custom-Build 
DP16  -  Access 
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity 
DP28  -  Waste Collection and Recycling 
DP30  -  Watercourses 
DP36  -  Heritage Assets 
DP37  -  Conservation Areas 
DP38  -  Listed Buildings 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
 
Joint Design Guide SPD (2022) 
 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as 
amended) 
This application has been assessed against the obligation to preserve listed 
buildings or their setting or any features of special architectural and historic 
interest and/or to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of 
conservation areas as required by the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended). The officer recommendation is 
considered to be consistent with these obligations.  
 
Equalities Act 2010 
The proposal has been assessed against section 149 of the Equalities Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of this 
proposal. 
 
Human Rights Act, 1998 
The application has been assessed against Schedule 1, Part 1, Article 8, and 
against Schedule 1, Part 2, Article 1 of the Human Rights Act, 1998. The harm 
to individuals has been balanced against the public interest and the officer 
recommendation is considered to be proportionate. 

 
Author:        Nathaniel Bamsey 
Email:         planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
Tel:        01235 422600 

Page 74



 Proposed Elevations 

Scale

Drawn

Date

This drawing is the copyr ight of A'Bear & Bal l
Architects LLP and may not be  copied or reproduced
without written permission. The Copyright Order 1990
provides for the Planning Authority to copy and
distribute drawings for public inspection in relation to a
Planning Application only if those copies are marked in
the following manner:

"This copy has been made  with the authority of A'Bear
& Ball Architects LLP pursuant to Section 47 of the
Copyright Designs and Patents Act 1988 and for the
purposes only of public inspection. This copy must not
be copied without the prior written permission of the
Copyright owner."

Do not scale from drawings unless for planning
purposes only. Use figured dimensions at all other
t imes. In case of doubt contact A'Bear & Bal l
Architects.

Dimensions to be checked on si te before work
commences and any discrepancies reported to the
Architect.

The accuracy of this drawing may be reliant upon
survey information provided by third parties. No liability
will be accepted by A'Bear & Ball Architects  LLP for
errors in or arising from such third party survey
information.

1:100 @A1

May 2022

DB

Project

Drawing Title

Drawing no. P03B

REV  DESCRIPTION  DATE 

W   www.abear-ball.co.uk
E     studio@abear-ball.co.uk
T     01793 228811

 PLANNING

NEW DWELLINGS @ LAND ADJACENT 
TO 'DRAGON HILL', UFFINGTON 

PLA
NNING

PLOT 2 - SOUTH ELEVATION

PLOT 2 - NORTH ELEVATION

PLOT 2 - WEST ELEVATION

PLOT 1 - SOUTH ELEVATION

PLOT 1 - NORTH ELEVATION

PLOT 1 - WEST ELEVATION

PLOT 2 - EAST ELEVATION

Frosted glass

0

Scale Bar m

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

A               Minor tweaks to Unit 2 16.05.22

PLOT 1 - EAST ELEVATION

natural slate roof

Render
Timber cladding

natural slate roof

Render

B                windows added to garage 18..01.23

Appendix 1

P
age 75



RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

TP

TP

TPTP

TP

TP

TP

Post

Post

Post

Post

PostPostPostPostPostPost

Post Post Post Post Post

Post

Post

Post

6M

6M

8M
5M

7M

12M

8M

10M

12M

12M

12M

Po
nd

 B
as

e

Slabs

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Vegetation

De
ns

e V
eg

eta
tio

n

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Shed

Shed

Vehicle
Vehicle

Vehicle

MH

IC

Pit

Veranda

Tank

Kennels

Concrete

Grass

ShrubsConcrete

Tarmac

Tarmac

Slabs

Slabs

Slabs

Slabs

Shrubs

Shrubs

Slab

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Stream

Stream

Br
id

ge

Overspill

Green
house

Materials

Slabs

Concrete

Materials

Trailer

Dense
 Vegetation

current 1.4m
 Fence Post/Rail

2m Panel Fence

2m Panel Fence

2m Panel Fence

2m Panel Fence

2m
 Panel Fence

1.4m Fence Post/Rail

1.4m Fence Post/Rail

1.2m B/W Fence

2m
 P

an
el

 F
en

ce

W.L
81.93

 Proposed Site  / Block Plan 

Scale

Drawn

Date

This drawing is the copyr ight of A'Bear & Bal l
Architects LLP and may not be  copied or reproduced
without written permission. The Copyright Order 1990
provides for the Planning Authority to copy and
distribute drawings for public inspection in relation to a
Planning Application only if those copies are marked in
the following manner:

"This copy has been made  with the authority of A'Bear
& Ball Architects LLP pursuant to Section 47 of the
Copyright Designs and Patents Act 1988 and for the
purposes only of public inspection. This copy must not
be copied without the prior written permission of the
Copyright owner."

Do not scale from drawings unless for planning
purposes only. Use figured dimensions at all other
t imes. In case of doubt contact A'Bear & Bal l
Architects.

Dimensions to be checked on si te before work
commences and any discrepancies reported to the
Architect.

The accuracy of this drawing may be reliant upon
survey information provided by third parties. No liability
will be accepted by A'Bear & Ball Architects  LLP for
errors in or arising from such third party survey
information.

1:200 @A1

JAN 2023

DB

Project

Drawing Title

Drawing no. P01F

REV         DESCRIPTION                                     DATE                                    

W   www.abear-ball.co.uk
E     studio@abear-ball.co.uk
T     01793 228811

    PLANNING

NEW DWELLINGS @ LAND ADJACENT 
TO 'DRAGON HILL', UFFINGTON 

PLA
NNING

GYM

Decking

83.44

83.54

83.52

83.56

83.45

83.48

83.58

83.78

83.88

83.64

83.72
83.55

83.75

83.59 83.57

83.49

83.44

83.55

83.45

83.53
83.69

83.69
83.89

83.81

83.69

84.03

83.46

83.43

83.66

83.55

83.96

83.99

83.92

84.15

83.99

84.04

84.21

84
.1

6

84.10

84.24

84.18 84.13

84.18

84.20

84.27

84.30

84.18

83.57

83.87

83.92

83.95

84.19

84.16 84.22
84.23

84.21

84.21

84.18
84.21

84.28

84.27

84.22

84.27

84.29

84.37

84.36

84.27
84.27 84.2984.31

84.15

84.00

83.94

84
.1

4

84.23

84.26

83.91

83.74

83.74

83.53

83.62

83
.3

6

83.52

83.50

83.82

83.84

84.10

84
.0

4

84.03

84
.0

4

84
.4

8

84.46

84.38

84.41

84.27

84.16

84.34

83
.7

7

84
.2

1

84.22

84.23

84.28

84.22

84.29

84.24

84.31

84.31

84.2084.18

84.20

84.28

84.30

84.20

84.14

84.41
84.42

84.42

84.34
84.21 84.22

84.19

84.15

82.99

84.15

84.15

82.68

83
.8

1

83
.8

6

83.49

84.07

83.99

83.61

83.73

83.3183.26

83.26

83
.0

8

82.96

82
.8

9

83
.0

4

83
.0

3

82
.9

0

82
.6

4

82.48

82
.3

9 81.87

81.98

82.35

82.52

82
.2

8

82
.4

482
.2

3

82
.3

4

82
.5

9

82
.7

8

82
.5

8

82
.53

82
.27

82
.88

82
.7

6

82
.35

82
.65

82
.35

83.97

84.30

84.00

84.17
83.83

83.19

82.98

82.81

82.71

82.72

82.85

83.28

83.17

83.00

83.0683.07

83.2483.24

83.42

83.34

83.06

83.11

83.29

83.60

83.54

83.25

83.06

83.22

83.54

83.78

83.49
83.44

83.30

83.08

83.20

83.45

84.02
83.8383.5783.3983.30

82
.46

82.67

82
.4

6

82
.63

84.20

82
.70

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

83.35

0

Scale Bar m

2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

INVT

INVT

GU

GU

GU
SVP

83.97

84.27

84.22

84.28

84.09

84.27

84.25

84.26

84.15

84.14

84.16

MH
MH

MHMH

Flat

Flat

Flat

86.20

87.30

87.40

Stmp

Stmp

Ridg

Ridg

Ridg

Ridg

Ridg

Ridg

Ridg

92.02

89.75

89.76

91.07

90.59

90.73

90.66

Eave

Eave

EaveEave

Eave

87.26

86.43

89.2687.51

89.24

peg
peg

SV

CS1
83.485

CS3
83.269

84.0

84.0

84.0

84.0

82
.0

82.0

83.0

83.0

83.0

2 x BAY 
GARAGE

269.90 Sq m

PLOT 1

Adjacent Plot - Under Construction

 DOG / 
BOOT 
ROOMEnsuite

 FORMAL 
  LIVING

storage cup'd
BED 5 / 
GUEST 
BED

 
GAMES / 
CINEMA 
ROOM 

STUDY

5

6

7

IFL 
84.39

2.40

IFL 84.39
2.40 IFL 84.39

2.40

Hallway
Boards

IFL 84.39
2.40

Kitchen

IFL 84.39
2.40

Room
Boards

IFL 84.39
2.40

Reception
Boards

IFL 84.39
2.40

IFL 84.39
2.40

S-Ht 0.95m
H-Ht 2.15m

S-Ht 1.12m
H-Ht 2.15m

S-Ht 0.95m
H-Ht 2.15m

S-Ht 0.95m
H-Ht 2.15m

S-Ht 0.00m
H-Ht 2.10m

S-Ht 0.92m
H-Ht 2.15m

S-Ht 0.95m
H-Ht 2.15m

S-Ht 0.90m
H-Ht 2.05m

S-Ht 0.95m
H-Ht 2.15m

S-Ht 0.95m
H-Ht 2.15m

S-Ht 0.95m
H-Ht 2.15m

S-Ht 0.00m
H-Ht 2.08m

Ht 2.00

Ht 2.00

Ht 2.00

Ht 2.00

Ht 2.00

Ht 2.00

Ht 2.00
Ht 2.00

Ht 2.00
Ht 2.00

Ht 2.00
Ht 2.00

Ht 2.00

Toilet
Tile

IFL 84.39
2.40

Hallway
Boards

IFL 84.39
2.40

Cupboard
Boards

IFL 84.39
2.40

Reception
Boards

S-Ht 0.95m
H-Ht 2.15m

Elec.

Shower

HWT

1

4

A

S-Ht 0.75m
H-Ht 2.05m

7

A
A

B
B

C
C

Ht 2.00

Ht 2.05

Ht 2.00

En-suite
Tile

IFL 84.39
2.40

IC

UP

ENTRANCE HALL

Coats

 DINING

UTILITY / 
DRYING 
ROOM

W.C

CHANGE

Shower

GARAGE

Plant

Entrance 
Hall

 KITCHEN
 LIVING  DINING

84.16

UP

US 1.38 US 1.38

Ht 2.00

POOL

83.74

8,000mm

4,600mm

2.4 X 100+ VISION SPLAY

2.4 X 70+ VISION SPLAY

Tarmac

Gravel

Gravel

Grass

Grass

Grass

KITCHEN

DINING

LIVING

ENTRANCE

UTILTY / 
BOOT

   LOUNGE / 
     SNUG

WC

COATS

STUDY / 
GAMES /  

UP

Decking 
(suspended) BI

NS

BINS

COATS

84.0

STUDY / 
GAMES /  
GUEST 
BED

KITCHEN

DINING

LIVING

UTILTY / 
BOOT

WC

ENTRANCE

    UP

DOUBLE HEIGHT 
       SPACE

DOUBLE HEIGHT 
       SPACE

A                 Minor tweaks to Unit 2                                             16.05.22

B                 83.350 topo level added  and flood plain                  08.06.22 
                    compensation added following discussions 
                    with drainage engineer                                   

83.31

83.30

2.4 X 90+VISION SPLAY

2.4 X 70+ VISION SPLAY

Grass

PLOT 2

EXISTING VEHICULAR ACCESS APPROVED UNDER  
APPLICATION NO.P22/V1141/FUL FOR 2 x UNITS  
& P21/V0467/FUL for 1 x Unit

EXISTING 'OPEN' VEHICULAR ACCESS 
SHUT WITH  5 BAR FIELD GATE .  

ONLY TO BE USED FOR 
TRANSFERRES OF 'BORDER 

MEADOWS' AS PER THE COVENANT 
RESTRICTION AND ENTITLEMENT  

2,
40

0m
m

2,400m
m

Right of Way exisists over this section  
of land via covenant in Title Deeds on 
adjacent plot 'Border Meadows'. See comments 
and evidence from adjacent plot owner within  
Planning Application P22/V1141/FUL dated 
30/05/2022 from 'Border Meadows'. 
This is a legal requirement that must be met.

C                Updtaes following Flood Modelling Data                   20.10.22

D                Accesses revised                                18.12.22

NEW ACCESS WITH SIGNIFICANTLY 
BETTER VISION SPLAYS FOR PLOT 2 

4,200mm

Grass Grass

Grass

E                New access moved west and more detail added      05.01.23

NEIGHBOURS APPROVED PLANTING SCHEME 
(P19/V2064/FUL)5,

50
0m

m

F               Existing Access field gate moved back 5.5m    
                  following Highway Comments                                  18.01.23

P
age 76



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 08 March 2023 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P21/V1202/HH 
 SITE The Stables Oxford Road Farmoor Oxford, OX2 

9NN 
 PARISH CUMNOR 
 PROPOSAL Retrospective application for garden building 

ancillary to the dwelling. To form recreation 
games room/gym, workshop, WC & store room. 
(As amplified by additional information received 
11 July 2022 and amended by plan and 
information received 23 January 2023). 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Alison Jenner 
Judy Roberts 

 APPLICANT Mr S Fan 
 OFFICER Lewis Dixey 
 

 

 RECOMMENDATION 
 Planning Permission granted, subject to the following conditions: 

 
Standard:  
1.  Approved plans 
 
Compliance: 

 2.  Materials in Accordance with Application 
3.  Restriction of Use to Ancillary Accommodation 
 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application is referred to committee following a call in by one of the Local 

Ward Members, Judy Roberts. 
 

1.2 The application refers to a sizeable plot to the north-west of Farmoor. The 
dwelling, a converted agricultural building, is sited towards the rear of the site. 
The closest neighbours are approximately 80m to the east, which form the 
edge of the main built-up area of the village. 
 

1.3 The site falls within the Oxford Green Belt. The south-west fringe of the plot is 
within Flood zones 2 and 3. However, it is important to note that the area of 
construction is not within these flood zones. 
 

1.4 This is a retrospective application and relates to a partially constructed, 
detached outbuilding built adjacent to the dwelling. Construction commenced 
due to the applicant working under the incorrect assumption that it was 
permissible under permitted development rights. However, under Part 1, Class 
E of the permitted development order (GPDO), these rights do not apply to 
dwellings where the conversion has been itself authorised under another class 
of permitted development. In this case, the dwelling was authorised under Part 
3, Class Q of the GPDO under ref P14/V1897/PAR. 

Page 77

Agenda Item 9

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V1202/HH


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 08 March 2023 

 
1.5 The original proposal has been amended in revised plans dated 23 January 

2023 reducing the overall mass of the proposed building, following concerns 
raised by officers 
 

1.6 A site location plan is provided below, and the application plans are attached 
at Appendix 1. 
 

 
 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 

Full versions of the responses can be found on the planning application pages 
of the council’s website www.whitehrsedc.gov.uk  
 

2.1 Cumnor Parish 
Council 

Objection –  

 Sited within a recognised flood zone 

 Inappropriate development within the Green Belt 
 

Drainage - 
(South&Vale) 
 

No objection 
 

Neighbours Three objections on the following grounds:  
 

 Sited within a recognised flood zone 

Page 78

http://www.whitehrsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 08 March 2023 

 Inappropriate development within the Green Belt 

 Possible future use as a dwelling 
 

 

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 VE21/58 -  () 

Without planning permission the construction of a residential outbuilding 
forward of the principal elevation 
 
P21/V0853/LDP - Refused (04/06/2021) 
Proposed garden building. 
 
P20/V2847/HH - Other Outcome (01/02/2021) 
Pitched roof detached building to form stable, tack room, office/study & 
workshop store 
 
P16/V0722/HH - Approved (17/08/2016) 
Single storey side extension. (As amended by documentation received 27th 
June amending the design of the original scheme). 
 
P15/V2338/DIS - Approved (26/10/2015) 
Discharge of conditions 3,4,5,6,7 on planning permission P14/V1897/PAR 
 
P15/V1482/PEM - Advice provided (01/09/2015) 
Cycle path. 
 
P14/V1897/PAR - Approved (22/10/2014) 
Conversion of existing  building to one dwelling. 

 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 This application does not fall within the defined scope for potential EIA 

development. 
 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The main relevant planning considerations are the following: 

  

 Green Belt Policy and visual impact 

 Neighbour amenity 

 Flood risk 
 

5.2 Green Belt Policy and Visual Impact 
Under paragraph 137 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) the 
Government attaches great importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of 
Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; 
the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their 
permanence. 
 

5.3 This is further reflected in policy CP13 of LPP1, and policy DBC4 of the 
Neighbourhood Plan, which list the types of development that is acceptable in 
the Green Belt. These include the extension or alteration of a building provided 

Page 79

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=VE21/58
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V0853/LDP
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/V2847/HH
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V0722/HH
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V2338/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V1482/PEM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/V1897/PAR


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 08 March 2023 

it does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the 
original building 
 

5.4 Neither the NPPF nor the development plan make any specific reference to 
outbuildings within the Green Belt. However, the Government have determined 
that full permitted development rights exist across the Green Belt, and these 
generally give the ability to erect outbuildings that cover up to 50% of the area 
of the curtilage of a dwelling, subject to other criteria. Case law and appeal 
decisions on outbuildings in the Green Belt also reflect decisions that are made 
on a case-by-case basis. Some of these have assessed such buildings in terms 
of whether they amount to a reasonable domestic adjunct to the dwelling and 
whether the size amounts to a proportionate addition to the dwelling. Therefore, 
whether the scale of a new domestic outbuilding is acceptable is a matter of 
fact and degree. 
 

5.5 In this particular case, given that the dwelling was created through the 
conversion of an agricultural building, there is no permitted development fall 
back for a new outbuilding, and therefore the building must be judged on its 
own individual circumstances as an incidental domestic outbuilding. 
 

5.6 The building as constructed in its unauthorised state would have a floor area of 
112sqm, more than the existing dwelling, which has a footprint of 100sqm. It is 
not disputed that the structure as built is unacceptable in its scale in 
comparison with the dwelling. The applicant has proposed a revised design 
which has reduced the floor area to 78sqm, with one side element to be 
demolished and the front gable removed to be replaced by a flat roof to bring 
down the overall mass. The dimensions of the main element of the amended 
building will be 9m x 6m, which is comparable to the size expected for a double 
garage and workshop. It will be 4m high, which on other sites would be the 
height of a permitted development outbuilding. 
 

5.7 In terms of volume, the original dwelling following conversion from an 
agricultural building amounted to 274m³. A small side extension of 60m3 was 
added following permission in P16/V0722/HH. The revised outbuilding has 
been reduced to a total of 227m³. Neither the NPPF nor the development plan 
makes any reference to specific volumetric measurements, and it is therefore 
the decision maker’s responsibility to make a judgement upon proportionality. 
 

5.8 The justification for the outbuilding is to provide the owners with additional 
storage space, a workshop and a recreation area to allow the family to partake 
in their table tennis hobby which requires a certain size playing area. These are 
uses that are normally considered to be incidental to the enjoyment of a 
dwelling and to be a suitable use of an outbuilding. 
 

5.9 Despite the extensive plot, the dwelling itself is relatively small and has very 
limited storage provision. There is also no loft space having been converted 
from an agricultural building. It would not be unusual for officers to consider an 
outbuilding such as a double garage within a large plot in the Green Belt as a 
reasonable, subservient addition to a dwelling.  
 

Page 80



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 08 March 2023 

5.10 In this case, officers have considered what would be regarded as a reasonable 
and proportionate addition to this particular dwelling. The applicant has 
engaged with the council to try and reach an acceptable solution to the 
unauthorised development. 
 

5.11 The main purpose of the Green Belt is to prevent urban sprawl and preserve 
the openness of the land. Officers therefore also considered the likely visual 
impact of the development. Officers have taken into account the proximity of 
the building to the dwelling and its overall visual impact on the site and 
surrounding area. 
 

5.12 Policies CP37 of LPP1 and DBC1 of the Neighbourhood Plan deal with the 
design and visual impact of new development. In this particular case the 
outbuilding is set a significant distance back from the public highway, which is 
over 80m to the north, and recent planting has further mitigated its visual 
impact from the public domain. The reduction in scale that is proposed would 
result in the building being clearly subservient in scale to the house. The 
building is sited within close proximity to the dwelling, being set to the rear of its 
existing parking area, and appears visually associated with main house. As 
such, the building is considered to have a functional relationship with the 
dwelling as would be expected for a reasonable domestic adjunct to the 
dwelling. 
 

5.13 The building is constructed with external materials that complement the 
dwelling in the form of a tiled roof and light-coloured render walls. From a visual 
amenity perspective, the building would not look incongruous in a domestic 
setting. 
 

5.14 It is therefore concluded that the proposed outbuilding, as reduced in size from 
the existing, can be treated as a reasonable domestic adjunct in terms of its 
scale and its use, and for this reason does not represent a disproportionate 
addition to the existing dwelling. Therefore, in terms of Green Belt policy it is 
considered to be acceptable.  
 

5.15 Residential Amenity 
Policy DP23 of LPP2 seeks to protect the amenity of neighbours from harmful 
development. The building itself is single storey in height and over 80m from 
the closest neighbour. There would be no harmful impact in terms of 
overlooking, overshadowing or visual dominance. 
 

5.16 Three objections have been received from neighbours which relate to the 
impact on the Green Belt and flood risk which are covered in other sections of 
this report. Further concern is raised over the potential for this building to be 
used as a new dwelling. There is no indication of this within the application and 
furthermore any future proposal to do so would require separate planning 
permission. This is further secured by condition requiring the building to remain 
ancillary to the dwelling.  
 

5.17 Overall, the building does not pose any harm to the amenities of neighbours 
and complies with policy DP23 of LPP2. 

Page 81



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 08 March 2023 

 
5.18 Flood Risk and drainage 

Policy CP42 of LPP1 seeks to ensure that development provides appropriate 
measures for the management of surface water as an essential element of 
reducing future flood risk to both the site and its surroundings. There have been 
several concerns raised over the siting of the building in relation to flooding. 
The plot backs onto tributary of the River Thames whose flood zone 
encroaches into the south-west corner of the site. The council’s GIS mapping 
indicates that the extent of Flood Zone 2 and 3 does not include the site of the 
building.   
 

5.19 Notwithstanding this, given that the flood zones are in close proximity to the 
application site, the council’s Drainage Engineer requested a Flood Risk 
Assessment in order to provide more detail and clarity on this matter. This was 
provided on 23 January 2023 along with a soakaway plan and drainage test 
details. The extent of the Flood Zones 2 and 3 and location of the building are 
shown on the map below indicating its position outside of the at-risk area: 
 

 
 
 

 
 

5.20 The Drainage Engineer has reviewed the FRA and is satisfied with the 
information provided. No objection is raised to the application. 
 

5.21 Highways impact 
Policies CP35 and CP37 of LPP1 and policy DP16 of LPP2 deal with access 
and parking. The plot is of a substantial size and retains a parking area to 
adequately support the dwelling. There would be no harm to highway safety 
 
 
 

Page 82



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 08 March 2023 

6.0 CONCLUSION 
6.1 Officers consider that, with the proposed reduction in scale, the proposed 

building is a reasonable domestic adjunct to the dwelling, does not represent a 
disproportionate addition to the dwelling, and is an acceptable outbuilding within 
the Green Belt. Its visual impact and its impact on neighbours will also be 
acceptable. Therefore, the outcome of the planning balance is that the proposal 
complies with the provisions of the development plan, in particular policies 
CP13, CP37 and CP42 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, Policies DP16 
and DP23 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Plan 2031 Part 2, and policies 
DBC1 and DBC4 of the Cumnor Neighbourhood Plan. The proposal is also 
considered to comply with the provisions of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and the council’s adopted Joint Design Guide SPD 2022. 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 

 
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Policies:  

CP13  -  The Oxford Green Belt 
 
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
 
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness 
 
CP42  -  Flood Risk 
 
CP44  -  Landscape 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan Part 2 Policies:  
DP16  -  Access 
 
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity 
 

 Cumnor Neighbourhood Plan policies: 
 
DBC1 – General Design Principles in the Parish 
 
DBC4 – Development in the Green Belt 

 
Joint Design Guide 2022  
 
National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Practice 
Guidance  
 

Other legislation Equalities Act 2010  

The proposal has been assessed against section 149 of the Equalities Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of this 
proposal.  
 
Human Rights Act 1998  
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in 
the processing of the application and the preparation of this report.  
 

Page 83



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 08 March 2023 

Author:        Lewis Dixey 
Email:         planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
Tel:             01235 422600 
 

 
  
 

Page 84

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Page 85



P
age 86


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Vale PC Minutes 26.10.2022
	Minutes

	Vale PC Minutes 09.11.2022
	Minutes

	Vale PC Minutes 25.01.2023
	Minutes

	Vale PC Minutes 14.02.2023
	Minutes


	7 P22/V2546/S73 - Land South of Halls Close, Drayton
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1 (1 of 4)
	Sheets and Views
	143-EX-001-Existing-Site-Layout


	Appendix 1 (2 of 4)
	Appendix 1 (3 of 4)
	Sheets
	143-PA-1-100 - Plot 1
	143-PA-1-101 - Plot 2


	Appendix 1 (4 of 4)
	Sheets
	143-PA-1-100 - Plot 1
	143-PA-1-101 - Plot 2




	8 P22/V2978/S73 - Dragon Hill, Uffington, Faringdon, SN7 7RE
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1 Elevations Proposed
	Appendix 1 Site Plan


	9 P21/V1202/HH - The Stables, Oxford Road, Farmoor, Oxford, OX2 9NN
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1 Block Plan
	Appendix 1 Composite Plan Proposed



